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China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE (RE)BRDE

Financial Highlights

B

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAB=THILAER

2021 2020 Percentage
—E--& —Z-FF change
HK$'000 HK$°000 ﬁ J:t
BRI BETT ol
RESULTS E3+
Revenue Wz 26,495,324 18,377,460 44%
EBITDA" BHE R HE
RE#EARA 8,197,532 6,369,203 29%
Proft attributable to equity holders ARFERBEA
of the Company FE(E R 3,887,378 3,028,747 28%
Return on shareholders’ equity BRESEHE
- half year (%) —¥E(%) 8.22 8.16 0.06 ppt
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRERBF (L) 63.28 49.30 28%
At 30 June At 31 December
2021 2020
R-B--& RZZE-EE Percentage
~NE=TH +_ﬂ,+ A change
HK$°000 HK$°000 ﬁ Jit
BETT BT #
FINANCIAL POSITION BEHR
Total assets BELE 184,513,441 158,187,110 17%
Total liabilities Epak 123,203,409 102,642,506 20%
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company fE 5 49,558,846 45,062,057 10%
Net asset value per share attributable RARERGEARE
to equity holders of the Company (HKS) GREEFE(EEL) 8.068 7.336 10%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBBLE%) 67 65 2 ppt
Current ratio (%) TRENL % (%) 132 133 -1 ppt
* EBITDA is the profit for the period before deduction of  * FFIE « BB - FrE REHEFT AT
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation. BIMBRAE - T - TEREHEA
ZARNHARI&F) o
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Business Review and Prospects

RGO R

OPERATING RESULTS

Business Overview

During the first half of 2021, the rapid rollout of
vaccines reduced the drag on the global economy
in the turbulent world of the COVID-19 pandemic
(the “Pandemic”). However, the negative impact of
the Pandemic resurgence is far from over, and it
continues to play a vital role in the global economic
recovery. While the global recovery is proving bumpy,
the Chinese economy continues to improve steadily
and has been returning to normal in the first year of
China’s 14th Five-Year Plan period.

As the 14th Five-Year Plan proceeds, China is
accelerating the creation of a new development
model. On the back of high-quality development,
the country has embarked on a new journey to
become a modern socialist country in all respects.
As highlighted in the 14th Five-Year Plan, promoting
green development, achieving high-quality economic
development and environmental protection in
tandem, have been listed as the key priorities,
an additional signal that the Chinese government
is strengthening ecological conservation and
environmental protection. Meanwhile, as countries
around the world have further focused on carbon
emissions reduction, China’s commitment to “Peak
Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieve Carbon
Neutrality” has stimulated global efforts to reduce
carbon footprint, as well as demonstrated China’s
commitment to and accountability for coping with
climate change. This helps create a more clear
and stable policy environment, nurtures the long-
term development of areas such as environmental
management, clean energy and resource recycling.
As a result, relevant industries and the overall
economy would further adhere to the low-carbon
development model.
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6 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

As a one-stop integrated environmental management
service provider, China Everbright Environment
Group Limited (the “Company” or “Everbright
Environment”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”) considers its focus on
providing quality and stable environmental services,
as well as keeping confidence in its strategies amid a
complex and changing environment, so as to working
with all sectors to survive the current unprecedented
period. During the period under review, facing new
situations, challenges and opportunities, the Group
closely followed the “Four Three Three” strategic
deployment' of China Everbright Group Ltd. (“China
Everbright Group”), and set a “Three Carbons”
development target. By upholding “Value Creation”
as the core, implementing the “Three Five Eight
Seven” development strategy, and focusing on
management advancement, the Group bravely
stepped out of its comfort zone and steadily carried
out transformation. It continued to increase the depth
and breadth of its industrial chains, strengthen the
comprehensiveness and diversity of its businesses,
improve the intelligence and digitalisation levels
for management, and enhance technological
innovation as core competitiveness. As a result, the
Group achieved growth in both business scale and
operational efficiency, which has further built up its
overall competitiveness and solidified its industry-
leading position.

! China Everbright Group’s “Four Three Three” strategic
deployment: To create “Four World-leading”, “Three
Domestic First-class”, and “Three Domestically
Distinctive” Everbright companies within five to ten years.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

eSO

SRR ()
EA—IR - 2P NBREA
RIEIR ST - P E AR (F
B)BR AR ([ARE %k K AR
%) BRAKERAR - SBIA
SE ) ROLEEABREBIR
BHEE BT MRS A
3% 005N DB RS BT
H o RERETAFEBE %
45 31 D6 15 O 29 - ELRREA G -
EUHLE  HAE AR
AEEERREEAEERD 2
A ([ AEE ) m== 8
BEE W = BRAE -
B EAIE B - RAEE
[SENEIRREBE  BEEE
R - BEGEHAEE  ESHE
ORI MEER
- BEITEST  BRANES
MR RADE  MFCETA
F - EBPRAELOBF ) -
ERMEREEE 0
BEANF)  REGREAD
2.

! PEEAEEN== |#IKEPE
REBETF  ITEEFHITER
AL [=Z@EFBE—R] - [=@
BARKEMESEREE -



Interim Report 2021
—ER--FhHRE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SELE (4F)
Business Overview (continued) XBRMEE)

The “Three Carbons” Development Target

[=mBREZ
To become To develop To pursue
a carbon-negative company zero-carbon plants low-carbon lifestyle
BERARDSE FTIET ik T BRARHRAETE

The “Three Five Eight Seven” Development Strategy
[=RENEIREERRK

Three Five Eight Seven aspects as
areas capabilities business sectors safeguards
ZREH AREEN NREBRR T ARE
Environment Market Environmental Eco-recycling Finance Human
BIE expansion energy HRER g7 resources
iR BRIE i
Resources Project Greentech Greenergy Bidding and Efficiency
BIR construction IFEIBR JARRER procurement LE
IR B
Energy Project Environmental Envirotech Budget Corporate
B operation water s EREl BE culture
BEEE BIRKT tExf
Equipment Equipment Environmental Safety and
manufacturing  manufacturing planning environmental
REsuE RhsuE RIERE management
ZRER
Technological
innovation

REsE L]
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group thoroughly
explored industry trends and its development path,
by closely following China’s goals of “Peaking
Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving Carbon
Neutrality” and in light of its “Three Carbons”
development target. It conducted comprehensive
exploration and deployment based on various
approaches, including theoretical knowledge,
technological research, development positioning and
business development ideas. In terms of theoretical
knowledge, the Group enhanced its expertise in
relevant areas through themed lectures, seminars
and study groups, etc, as well as broadened the
mindset and horizon of all staff. As for technological
research, the Group improved the model to calculate
the carbon emissions, building a theoretical basis
to help define the Group’s corporate nature in
terms of carbon emissions. In addition, it developed
charts to estimate its greenhouse gas emissions
by 2030 and 2060 respectively, which serve as
scientific evidence for its future development and
technological innovation plans. The Group also
established a technology research and development
(“R&D”) center dedicated to carbon neutrality, with
a view to catching up with internationally-advanced
technologies and building a professional platform
for conducting relevant researches in the future.
Regarding development positioning, the Group
conducted a thorough study, analysis and exploration
of carbon-themed business opportunities to facilitate
its business transformation and innovation. In respect
of business development ideas, the Group started
preparing whitepapers and action plans that focus on
“Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving
Carbon Neutrality”.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of operating results, during the period under
review, the Group’s traditional business sectors
continued stable progress and new business sectors
maintained positive momentum, with operating
indicators such as revenue and profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company recording significant
growth. Amid the normalisation of pandemic
prevention and control, the Group proceeded with
project construction in a safe and orderly manner,
continuing to drive the growth of construction service
revenue; meanwhile, operation service revenue saw
a significant increase due to various measures taken
to expand revenue streams, reduce expenditure
and improve efficiency, in addition to the increase
in the number of operating projects. With regard to
finance, the Group had smooth and diverse access to
financing channels, with abundant capital and good
results across all financial indicators.

Major operating indicators in the first half of 2021 are
summarised in the table below:

REXEH)

EBHMEE)
REZETE DA KK
BEREBRACETIRTE
#EIMERED  MEZXKERIR
BREERERN  BE AR
AEEFAARGRANSTELE
BESEERE - AN BEIHAER
BhEERLCBET  AEET
RERL2BFEELE  BETH
EERBEEER  EEHEAR
ERAEN  REEESEER
FUREI R - FEAER - S BLIR
Ba AR LT - BB TE - A
SERMERESZTHR  E2R
# - BEMBEFERRL -

TE R FITEREEREZ
WEWNT :

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 Change
BZ Y
“E--% —Z-%F
AA=T1H ~A=1H BOL
1R 8B 1F7~{EA L)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Revenue s 26,495,324 18,377,460 44%
EBITDA RS - BE - B
RABEA AR 8,197,532 6,369,203 29%
Profit attributable to equity AREEEREEA
holders of the Company TE(L BT 3,887,378 3,028,747 28%
Basic earnings per share BREAEF
(HK cents) (&AL 63.28 49.30 28%
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group recorded
a total revenue of HK$26,045,032,000 from its
environmental energy, greentech and environmental
water sectors, of which revenue from construction
services increased by 51% from the first half of
2020 to HK$15,674,240,000, and revenue from
operation services increased by 37% from the first
half of 2020 to HK$7,881,493,000. The revenue from
construction services, operation services and finance
income accounted for 60%, 30% and 10% of the
total, respectively.

During the period under review, with an aim to better
align with the development pace and timely replenish
its working capital, the Group paid close attention to
market dynamics, continued to explore and enhance
diversified financial channels, optimised its capital
structure, as well as reasonably managed financial
costs, in order to further enhance financial security
for the Group’s future development. In addition,
the Group actively collected accounts receivable,
negotiated with banks to secure additional facility
support, and obtained various subsidies worth
RMB486 million in total granted by government
authorities. As of 30 June 2021, the Group had cash
on hand of HK$15,371,357,000, with a reasonable
gearing level and healthy financial position.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) AR ()

Business Overview (continued) EBRMEE)

The Group’s major financing arrangements in the first —Z - —4&F L4  KEETE

half of 2021 are summarised in the table below: BMETHRWMEWNT -
Issue date Financing activities and uses of proceeds Issue size (RMB)
BITEHH BMERIUNEEESRRE EITHRE(ARE)
June 2021 The Company issued its first tranche of 2021 2 billion
—E-—FXA medium-term notes (bond connect) in the 20187

national inter-bank bond market in mainland
China for the replenishment of daily working
capital for the Company’s subsidiaries and
repayment of bank borrowings.

ARABIREBERITEGSFMHET_T=—
FEF—HHPEE(EHFB) - BRERAR
ARMBARIEEEE R RMERBITER

April 2021 China Everbright Greentech Limited 589 million
—E-—FMA (“Everbright Greentech”), the Company’s 5.89187C
subsidiary, issued its first asset-backed
notes, with receivables relating to the
national subsidies for renewable energy
power prices as the underlying assets for
the replenishment of general working capital
of Everbright Greentech or repayment of

borrowings.

RARMBARRE X RGERRERA A
([FREGEIRIR])BEITE BABRA B4R
IREBHT BN E © YRR ER ) & E
XHEE  ARHRAAGERR —REE
ERNERER -

January 2021 China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright 1 billion
T —%—A Water”), the Company’s subsidiary, issued 101E7C
its second tranche of medium-term notes
in the national inter-bank bond market
in mainland China for the replenishment
of working capital of Everbright Water’s

subsidiaries.

RA I E R E B RKEERRF ([
NKBDRERBRITRESMSETE M
R S b o N1 N
BE® -
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The Group remains dedicated to creating value
for and sharing development returns with the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
To reward the Shareholders for their support
and taking into account the Group’s long-term
development, the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Director(s)”) of the Company proposed to pay
an interim dividend of HK19.0 cents per share for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 to the Shareholders
(2020: HK14.0 cents per share).

As of 30 June 2021, the Group had a business
presence in over 200 locations across 24 provinces,
municipalities, autonomous regions and special
administrative region in China, with overseas
business markets in Germany, Poland and Vietnam.
The Group secured a total of 499 environmental
protection projects, with an aggregate investment
of approximately RMB146.311 billion; it also
undertook 40 environmental remediation services, 21
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
projects, 5 energy management contract (“EMC”)
projects and 3 operation and management (“O&M”)
projects. As the world’s largest waste-to-energy
investor and operator, the Group had a total of 168
waste-to-energy projects under its environmental
energy and greentech sectors, with an aggregated
designed daily household waste processing capacity
of 144,650 tonnes.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

05 24 ()

EBHEE)

REBRFARRRRKRE(K
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- BEEIRE SRR
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to make steady progress despite the fierce
market competition, adhered to the high-quality
development of traditional businesses such as
waste-to-energy, and at the same time made great
efforts in developing new businesses such as sorting,
collecting, transferring and transporting of waste,
resource recycling, and energy-saving lighting, in a
bid to strike a balance between asset-light and asset-
heavy businesses and the business diversification.
During the period under review, Everbright Greentech
entered into a share capital increase agreement with
Kellon Green Energy Limited (“Kellon Company”, now
known as Everbright Kellon Green Energy Limited)
in Hong Kong to acquire a 60% equity interest in
Kellon Company, tapping into Hong Kong’s solar
energy market and marking the Group’s entry into
Hong Kong’s environmental protection industry.
Separately, Everbright Water’s purchase of 65%
equity interest in Tianjin Binhai New Area Huantang
Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Huantang Company”)
helped it to tap into Tianjin’s water market. This not
only further solidifies the Group’s market deployment
in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, but also marks
the Group’s first attempt under the mixed-ownership
reform of China’s state-owned enterprises (“SOE
Mixed-ownership Reform”). In the first half of 2021,
the Group signed 40 new projects (including projects
secured through acquisitions) and 2 supplementary
agreements on the existing projects, commanding a
total investment of approximately RMB7.031 billion.
In addition, it undertook 1 waste sorting pilot
service, 4 environmental remediation services,
7 EPC projects, 2 EMC projects and 1 equipment
supply project, with an aggregate contract value of
approximately RMB228 million.

13
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The major designed treatment and supply capacities
of the new projects secured in the first half of 2021
are summarised as below:

Project category

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

REXEH)

EBMEE)

R —F P ERETBRE
BRENMHERERENT

Designed treatment/Supply capacity

BA R BETRIE M ERE
Household waste 7,450 tonnes/day
SR BIIR 7,450M8 /B
Food and kitchen waste 2,130 tonnes/day
EB RE#HN R 2,130W8 /" H
Hazardous and solid waste 100,000 tonnes/annum
fERE % [E E 100,000, 4F
Steam supply 634,000 tonnes/annum
K IHLIE 634,000M8 4
Water treatment* 270,000 m3/day
KRB 270,000 75K /B

* Including various types of water business, such as water supply, waste water treatment and reusable

water.

o BEHUK . FKEE - RKBIASKEBER -

In terms of safety and environmental management,
the Group, being an environmental protection
enterprise, shoulders the responsibility of safe
production and attaches great importance to safety
and environmental management. During the period
under review, the Group introduced the “One Two
Four Six” safety and environmental management
framework, which stands for one overall target, two
critical areas, four integrated aspects and six key
work priorities; benchmarked against international
best practices in terms of safety and environmental
management; further enhanced its safety and
environmental management model that involves joint
operations across different levels of management;
optimised various safety and environmental
management systems; and carried out special
improvement tasks. All-related works progressed
smoothly and reported good effects.

ZE2ERFE(TRER|)EETM
Wﬁ%ﬁﬁ% AEHBAER
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the period
under review, with the normalisation of the Pandemic
prevention and control, the Group remained
committed to carrying out construction works in
an orderly manner, with a focus on safety, quality,
cost and compliance and adherence to the seven
principles of “productivity, efficiency, quality, cost-
effectiveness, legitimacy, safety and integrity”. It also
enhanced the dynamic management of construction
progress. As a result, the Group saw an increase in
construction service revenue. In the first half of 2021,
53 projects completed construction and commenced
operation, and 4 projects completed construction.
Meanwhile, 23 projects commenced construction,
together with 5 environmental remediation services,
1 waste sorting project, 1 EMC project and 3 EPC
projects that were completed and delivered.

In terms of operations management, during the
period under review, the Group, with a focus on “cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement” and “value
creation”, continued to uphold high management
standards on its operating projects, to ensure stable
operation and compliance with relevant emission
standards. It also proactively built up its capabilities
in digitalisation and intelligent management, as
well as enhanced the platform roles of its projects.
Additionally, with effective pandemic prevention and
control measures in place, the Group continued to
open up its projects for public visits, enhancing the
transparency of its project operation.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

As a pioneer in the ecological environmental
protection industry, the Group regards meticulous
and efficient environmental management, along
with timely and accurate environmental information
disclosure, as necessities to fulfill its environmental
protection obligations as a corporate citizen, as well
as protecting the basic right of people to pursue a
better living environment. During the period under
review, the Group continued to open up its projects
for public visits under the premise of effective
pandemic prevention and control measures. As a
result, such projects received more than 55,000
local and foreign visitors from all social circles. The
Group also organised online open day activities to
fulfill the public demands for project visits, given
the normalisation of the pandemic prevention and
control measures. It is worth mentioning that the
Group’s Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction
Public-Private Partnership (“PPP”) Project (“Zhenjiang
Sponge City Project”) was shortlisted as Top 5
in the Building Back Better Infrastructure Award
of the United Nations Economic Commission for
Europe (“UNECE”) in April 2021. The project was
also presented at UNECE'’s fifth International PPP
Forum as one of the best People-first PPP projects.
This latest international recognition underlines
the project’s achievements in urban waterlogging
management and contributions to the PPP model
and the development of sponge cities. On the other
hand, the recognition demonstrates the Group’s
proactive fulfillment of its social responsibility through
business operations, which has created a better living
environment for the local residents, bringing them
convenience and a sense of fulfillment.

Achieving an all-win situation for the society, the
environment and the economic benefits have always
been an important goal of the Group. Therefore,
the Group upholds the philosophy of protecting the
environment with social responsibility, makes tireless
efforts in areas including reducing pollution and
carbon emission, as well as ecological conservation,
and integrates relevant concepts and measures into
its daily business operations.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

IRERSEAE f‘)

FEIRIRITRMBEE R -

- AR E B
&~$ﬁm%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
TRERBEH O
FIBREIF IR
- BEHIA - A

i i A
8 3 4 1
Hﬁ
W
H

[i
i

vid
i
&
N
=6
@

2]

H
Il

il
i

I

=t

—| 5 A e Ho
S B

o 5 @

i

[

A
B
il

—

Kl

SH

ERTENTS
b3 Bt

kS
- S
&
28t

—
=

T

- o i i -

i
I 55—~

W5 —1 8

>_
H_
W
o O
QM
b
>
51 el 28 2
o
o
o

- FEER

il
R A i RS B W 3k

-SSR M
B E

>

=

Bh

A
[y
- B

Fi

\/|
N

t o 38 5 4

35 Fin (0 X Tl
%?@23?)
1% 0o
i
B Xt

h

—~
-
[
~

-
2

0| | T S ¢

® |
FIS R
s Ciele bt

®m

L
=gl
R

&

H

K8 I8 B i | SR -

[
~

@ %i@%h’%
5hHE 1#%
|PPPIER 2 — Bt &
%ﬁ):IIB%'\PPPEﬁEiE
&

S~

P

" B B 0 > T
> b F 3

EI:

+
59

oy

HEM%EW%W%°

<
>
e
M

=
Y
Sm

12X

BT - ZEBKETE
BRI MRS A E
A REPPP - i a5
EROEH  OREAE
it

bl
N

}&

\

S5 S

71 #

BB BEBEETE S e &
: HiE
B

H
5%
EER-

'_',

[
sl 2 /35 2 i S b

B 24 m S7 )

Ta 14
| 5l

m

=1
D
T
G
)
b

P Ra: AN
RSN
= oo

HIE 4T
ERED

%

H

b

Y e

8 2 S

i

\

/]
i

X

N
|8
it
B
A
b

- b S OH

DI

\if

NG

S

)i
“HQW%M”
5 TR 1

- RO B
HECSE R o 35

1 T HF G 48 10 Ot e
S -

0 T 1 18> [ o 3

Hep myigi < | IR
p 9‘?’} .
ha s
=
-
i

Y
I SR el
I\ 7 S BB N Ei R

[



Interim Report 2021
—ER--FhHRE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The Group’s major environmental contribution in the
first half of 2021 is summarised as below:

Treatment capacity

17
REXEH)
EBRMEE)
T —FL¥FE . AREER
RIEERBREWT

Environmental contribution

RIBRIE REER

Household waste processed 20,354,000 tonnes Generating green electricity of 10,546,963,000 kWh.
EERIR IR 8 20,354,00084 This output could support the annual electricity
Hazardous and solid waste processed 115,000 tonnes consumption needs of 8,789,000 households,
SEREEREE 1150008 equivalent to saving 4,219,000 tonnes of standard

, — coal, while reducing carbon dioxide (CO,)
Agricultural and forestry waste processed 3,752,000 tonnes emissions by 9,447,000 tonnes
EHEEYREE 3,752,000

M % © T H10,546,963,000 T F B - ] ft
8,789,000 RE—FEMA - HERBAZHK
4,219,000 + > = L HrHERRO,447, 00018

Waste water treated
AKREE

803,357,000 m*
803,357,00037 /5K

Waste-to-energy plants’ leachate treated
NREERZBREEE

4,150,000 m*
4,150,000 /3K

Reducing chemical oxygen demand (“COD”)
discharge of 386,000 tonnes
A EFEEE([CODJ) B 386,000

Since the Group’s first environmental protection
project commenced operation in 2005, its
aggregated major environmental contribution is

summarised as below:

B-_TTAFAEEEERRE
BRENAR  REBRFANEIE
REEFB20T :

Aggregated
treatment capacity Aggregated environmental contribution
R RERE ZEIRE AR
Household waste processed 145,859,000 tonnes Generating green electricity of 68,999,390,000 kWh.
EENREEE 145,859,0008F This output could support the annual electricity
Hazardous and solid waste processed 1,186,000 tonnes consymption needg of 57,500,000 households,
SEREERES 1,186,000 equivalent to saylng 27.,600,000 tlonlnes of
- standard coal, while reducing CO, emissions by
igncultural andgforestry waste processed 22,391,000 tonnes 67,909,000 tonnes
kbl 22,301,000M {44 &8 768999390000 F KK - 7 ¢4
57,600,000 K EE —F £ F - HERHHEHK
27,600,0000 + &2 =&/ HxHE 67,909,000
Waste water treated 12,066,949,000 m® Reducing COD discharge of 4,598,000 tonnes
AKEEE 12,066,949,00032 75 K B4 CODHE4,598,000H
Waste-to-energy plants’ leachate treated 30,387,000 m®
NREERLRREEE 30,387,0003Z 75 K
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group
continued to fully support and participate in various
philanthropic activities in environmental education
energy-saving and carbon reduction, ecological
conservation, and community care. Among which,
the Group, through its Everbright Environment
Charitable Foundation, supported the World Wide
Fund Hong Kong to build the Solar Dome at the
Island House in Yuen Chau Tsai, Taipo, Hong Kong,
which has been put into operation. The facility will
serve as a sustainability educational facility for
Hong Kong students and other social groups to
promote the concepts and knowledge relating to
renewable energy, sustainable development and
ecological conservation. In addition, the Group
signed a memorandum of understanding with the
Asian Development Bank (“ADB”) ahead of the World
Oceans Day in 2021, for a strategic cooperation
towards the circular economy and the reduction of
marine debris through strengthening of the solid
waste management system in Asia to foster ocean
health. At the project level, the Group’s project
companies in multiple locations continued to actively
respond to various environmental protection-themed
festivals, such as “World Environment Day”, “World
Water Day” and “China Water Week”, organising
online and offline activities to promote knowledge
relating to ecological environmental protection and
sustainable development to local residents. By
organising such activities, the Group strengthened
local communities’ understanding of environmental
protection and sustainable development issues, as
well as solidified its connections and mutual support
with local residents.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In the first half of 2021, the Group received many
honors in recognition of its efforts in different aspects,
including business operation, business model,
sustainable development and social responsibilities.

19

IR AL f‘)

The major awards and honors are summarised as

below:

Category
L=l

Award/Honor
HIE /BB

Issuance organisation

REBE

Business operation

E T

First place in the 2021 Top 50
Environmental Protection Enterprises in
China (the third consecutive year)

2021 BIRIF (P ¥6058 | ERE T
(BEE=F)

China Environment
Chamber of Commerce
2R THEIRENE

Business model

EHEA

Jiangsu Changzhou Waste-to-energy
Project, Hainan Sanya Waste-to-energy
Project and Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-
energy Project listed in the first batch of
exemplary green PPP case studies

IEHEMARFEEIER « BE =D
BIHA REaGREEHE AR
47 PPPIE B SR EL R f)

Zhenjiang Sponge City Project shortlisted
as Top 5 in the Building Back Better
Infrastructure Award 2021 of the UNECE

LB MIEE AEHS BEA®20214F
[EifEE & *‘“mélﬁ.ﬁ £ Fof

Shandong Zibo Reusable Water Project
named the recommended case study in
reusable water

LY BRI 8 FR ok B I8 B AT A B A K e A
HERED

Shandong Zibo Zhangdian East Chemical
Industry Park Industrial Waste
Water Treatment Project named the
recommended case study in industrial
waste water treatment

L BR Rk J BR EB b TR )5 K iR 3R IE B
B RIXEREKRBEBZEM

The National Development
and Reform Commission
of the People’s Republic

of China (“PRC”)
mEARLME([HE])
BRERNLERES
UNECE
BABERKEE

E20 Environmental
Platform
E20REF &

E20 Environmental
Platform
E20IRIZF A




20

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects %7 EEE R &2

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

OPERATING RESULTS (continued) REZE(E)

Business Overview (continued) EBMEE)
Category Award/Honor Issuance organisation
Bl B KB MBI
Sustainable Inclusion in the Sustainability Yearbook S&P Global
development 2021 (the fourth time) EE2B
ARFEEE ENACQONFAFERRFE)

(FmR)

Social responsibilities
HEEE

Over 30 environmental protection projects
of the Group included in the fourth batch
of environmental facilities and municipal
wastewater and waste treatment
facilities opening up to the public in
China

AEEETRI0ESFRRIAR Kg A&
St 2 BIR R AR HE AN T /5 K MR
BRiEMARARELRE

Social Responsibility Brand of the Year

(the seventh consecutive year)

FERIREZ(EESLSF)

Outstanding Enterprise in Fighting Against

The Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the
PRC, and the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development of
the PRC

HBIAEREIRIERS - (EEM
I 8 72 R D

China Charity Festival
el ]

China Charity Festival

COVID-19 B A ED
EGHEREE
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors VAV NE 7.3 e AN
()  ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY i) IBIRELR

As the Group’s core business sector, with
the largest scale and making up the biggest
business portion, the environmental energy
sector covers waste-to-energy, food and
kitchen waste treatment, sludge treatment and
disposal, leachate treatment, fly ash treatment,
methane-to-energy, construction and
decoration waste treatment, heat supply and
the development of environmental protection
industrial parks, etc. During the period under
review, the Group’s environmental energy
sector remained at the leading position in the
waste-to-energy industry.

ERAKEETREZA
XA &= AL R BR
8 RIRBERER B REAIR
B EREERE  2REA
BRIB - R ERIE - RRE
B BERENREE - #
2 REREXEEMES - 0O
BEEIA - RNEBRFRERIR
RIBE R R EITEREN

fiZ °
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

As of 30 June 2021, environmental energy
had invested in 217 projects, commanding
a total investment of approximately
RMB86.792 billion, and undertook 1 O&M
project. These projects are designed to
have an annual household waste processing
capacity of 49,019,500 tonnes, which is
expected to generate annual on-grid electricity
of 16,482,010,800 kWh, an annual food
and kitchen waste processing capacity of
2,131,600 tonnes, an annual sludge treatment
capacity of 321,200 tonnes, and an annual
medical waste processing capacity of
10,950 tonnes.

As of 30 June 2021, environmental energy’s

waste-to-energy projects are summarised as
follows:

Project status

Number of projects

21

EBMEE)
NARFEIR A1 ()

(i)

IRIRBER (&)
BHE-_T-_—F A=
B RREREEER
HE21718  BIREHYN
)
bay)

S
\|
/|
B
i)

R ¥ 867.92 & 7T

ELZTEZEEE1E
AREAFREAE
49,019,500 M8 « F F4E
£ 16,482,010,800 T F B
FREZH LB %R
2,131,600MF « F R IE 5
321,200MF - 4F i ¥ %8 T s
#)([ 88 EE 1)10,950M8 o

& 551 S48 B >~ mf —+

Bz-_Z2-—FX<XA=+
B RIREERL K EEEE
BRmT

Designed processing
capacity (tonnes/annum)

TH B kg 15 B B2 (&) BETERIR AR (W8, )
In operation* 116 36,518,250

g

Under construction 21 9,909,750

TEE

* including an O&M project
* EREREA
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

In terms of market development, environmental
energy adhered to the principle of “Three
Priorities and One Clarification” to carry out
high-quality development of its waste-to-
energy business. In the meantime, it leveraged
the Group’s “Five Points in One Line” process
model for waste sorting, which includes
sorting, transferring, selecting, recycling and
incinerating waste, to further penetrate the
upstream business of the waste-to-energy
industry; as a result, it secured waste sorting
and transfer projects in multiple provinces
including Jiangsu and Shandong. Additionally,
by focusing on the 3 major business areas as
the business strategy, the Group developed
synergistic business relating to the waste-
to-energy, so as to extend its business
value chain, with the newly-secured projects
covering steam supply, food and kitchen waste
treatment, sludge treatment and disposal,
medical waste treatment, fly ash treatment,
etc. In the first half of 2021, environmental
energy secured 23 new projects (including a
project secured through acquisition) for a total
investment of approximately RMB4.771 billion.
It also secured 1 EPC project, with a
contract value of RMB28 million. The newly
secured projects contributed a designed
daily household waste processing capacity
of 6,950 tonnes and a designed daily food
and kitchen waste processing capacity of
1,530 tonnes. During the period under review,
the Group signed a supplementary agreement
relating to Heilongjiang Harbin Yuquan Waste-
to-energy Project, with the related expenses of
the project land usage in the original investment
amount being borne and directly paid for by the
local government. This will not be included in
the Group’s capital budget, and therefore the
project investment amount was decreased. The
processing capacity and related equipment of
the project remain unchanged.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

o 5 (42
EHHE )
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RIRREIR (45)
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, environmental energy
had 44 projects that completed construction
and commenced operation, with a designed
daily household waste processing capacity
of 24,100 tonnes and a designed daily food
and kitchen waste processing capacity of
1,415 tonnes. 12 projects commenced
construction, with a designed daily household
waste processing capacity of 6,050 tonnes,
a designed daily food and kitchen waste
processing capacity of 830 tonnes.

In relation to operations management, all
projects under environmental energy strictly
followed relevant emission standards,
prioritised and optimised the safety and
environmental management systems,
implemented a regular project inspection
mechanism, and promoted the development
of an intelligent management platform, in an
attempt to refine its management through
internal improvements. In the first half of 2021,
the average electricity generated per tonne of
waste incinerated at environmental energy’s
waste-to-energy projects exceeded 466 kWh,
with an integrated power consumption ratio of
approximately 14%.
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REXEH)
EBHMEE)
NARFEIR A1 ()

(i)

RIREER (&)
TREXRF®E @ DEHRK -
IRIREER LA 44EE B &K
188 REEEABREA
SEBRIK24,100ME « A EIE
BRI N B g% 1,41508 ¢
12EBE R TENR - R:HR
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE (RE)BRDE

EBME(E)

Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental energy sector contributed an
EBITDA of HK$5,520,997,000, an increase
of 35% as compared with the first half of
2020. Environmental energy contributed
a net profit attributable to the Group of
HK$3,217,605,000, an increase of 27% as
compared with the first half of 2020. The
increase in profit was mainly attributable to the
growth in the number of construction projects,
and the continuing increase in the aggregate
processing capacity of the operating projects,
driving an increase in construction service
revenue and operation service revenue.

Major operating data relating to environmental

/17&%%&%@ BA(45)

(i) IRIREEIR(E)
CIEEEAN - REBEIRREER
IRBEBBRFIE ~ BB 37
ENEENRBAINAREEE
5,520,997,0007T * M- &
ZEF FFFHIMN35Y - IR
REFBEMASBEGFA
R 7 #3,217,605,000 7T
BR-OT-TF EEFEN
27% : BAEMEEZE
REEMANERIBEHE -
oo EEZEE ARER
ﬁﬂaiﬁbu o) RS
W MEERBEMEFIER -

—To—FP¥ERREE

energy during the first half of 2021 are B FTEELSHEREN
summarised in the table below: T
For the For the
six months Six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 Change
8z Bz
“E--F i S %23
AA=t1H ANE=1H =R
1B A 1EREA g
Waste processing volume NPREE
(tonnes) () 18,690,000 13,647,000 37%
Food and kitchen waste, BEREHIUR -
sludge and other waste V5T M E 3 R
processing volume (tonnes)  RIE S (1) 816,000 591,000 38%
On-grid electricity (MWh) HREECKRE) 6,227,976 4,372,440 42%
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

GREENTECH

As of 30 June 2021, the Group held a 69.7%
stake in Everbright Greentech, which is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Everbright Greentech focuses on hazardous
and solid waste treatment, environmental
remediation, integrated biomass utilisation,
solar energy and wind power, among others.
It positions itself as a supplier for achieving
intelligent energy dedicated to “Carbon
Neutrality”, as well as a prominent industrial
hazardous waste treatment investor and
operator, in China.

As of 30 June 2021, Everbright Greentech had
invested in 131 projects with a total investment
of approximately RMB32.432 billion. These
projects are designed to have an annual
biomass raw material processing capacity of
8,089,800 tonnes, an annual household waste
processing capacity of 3,777,750 tonnes,
and an annual hazardous and solid waste
processing capacity of 2,941,900 tonnes,
which are expected to generate annual on-grid
electricity of 6,825,844,700 kWh and an annual
steam supply of 4,969,000 tonnes.

As of 30 June 2021, Everbright Greentech’s
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects
are summarised as follows:

Project status Number of projects
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KE R ()
EBHMEE)
NA Bk SH o]EE (45)
(ii) ﬁ@%%
HE-_T=-—F A=

B AEESE AR ER
RE9.7% MR © JLRERE
hﬁﬁ%%%éi%%ﬁ@
NE(TBERA]) ERE™
NE) BNk BERER
E~%%@@~E%Eﬁé
MA - RAREBLEEBE
f8,  TE AL A B <R SE Y AR
mAESREREERRT
XEBEREREELH -

HE-_T-_—F
E'%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%
& EEE 131 -

ﬁx&%%3m32@
*#ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ@i%%
& # #} 8,089,800 Mf -
Br 1B 4 0F 17 % 8,777,750
Wi FRE R &E RE
2,941,900 - FF FHEE
6,825,844,700 F B B » 4
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B ARG ERRLECERE
EEEREBEEBBAOT

Designed processing
capacity (tonnes/annum)

TH B kg 5 B @ (&) BETERIR AR (W8, )
In operation 285 698,400

g

Under construction 18 1,176,500
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

GREENTECH (continued)

With respect to market development, during
the period under review, Everbright Greentech
acquired a 60% equity interest in Kellon
Company by increasing its share capital to
expand its solar energy business in Hong
Kong, in response to China’s commitment to
“Peak Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieve
Carbon Neutrality”. In the first half of 2021,
Everbright Greentech secured 11 new projects
and signed 2 supplementary agreements
for existing projects, commanding a total
investment of approximately RMB742 million.
It also secured 4 environmental remediation
services, with a total contract value of
approximately RMB117 million. The new
projects are designed to have an annual
household waste processing capacity of
182,500 tonnes, an annual steam supply
capacity of 450,000 tonnes and an annual
hazardous and solid waste processing capacity
of 100,000 tonnes.

In respect to project construction, during the
period under review, Everbright Greentech had
7 projects that completed construction and
commenced operation, in addition to 1 project
that completed construction, contributing a
designed annual household waste processing
capacity of 620,500 tonnes, and a designed
annual hazardous and solid waste processing
capacity of 329,800 tonnes. 5 environmental
remediation services were completed and
delivered in the first half of 2021. In addition,
9 projects commenced construction, with a
designed annual hazardous and solid waste
processing capacity of 632,500 tonnes.
5 environmental remediation services started
respective remediation work.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBHMEE)
NARFERI 1 (45)

(i
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)

Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)  GREENTECH (continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s
greentech sector contributed an EBITDA of
HK$1,636,791,000, an increase of 3% as
compared with the first half of 2020. Greentech
contributed a net profit attributable to the
Group of HK$505,375,000, a decrease of 16%
compared with the first half of 2020. The profit
decrease was mainly due to the increase in
financial expenses following the issuance of

asset-backed notes during the period.
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Major operating data relating to greentech TE-—F F¥YFE - EIR
during the first half of 2021 are summarised in RrZFEELSHEREN
the table below: T
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 Change
BZE Bz
“E--F i S %23
~A=TH ~A=1H Bok
1EA@EA EREA &
Waste processing volume  $i R 1E & (1)
(tonnes) 1,664,000 1,077,000 53%
Biomass raw material EMERMEEES
processing volume (tonnes)  ([) 3,752,000 2,891,000 30%
Hazardous and solid waste fEREERERERE S
processing volume (tonnes) () 115,000 86,000 34%
Steam supply volume (tonnes) % /5 {f f& £ (1 ) 1,059,000 588,000 80%
On-grid electricity (MWh) TREECKRE) 3,039,347 2,650,532 15%
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Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER

As of 30 June 2021, the Group held a 72.87%
stake in Everbright Water, which is listed on
the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As a leading water
environment management service provider in
China, Everbright Water has developed fully-
fledged business coverage, which includes
raw water protection, water supply, municipal
waste water treatment, industrial waste
water treatment, reusable water, river-basin
ecological restoration and sludge treatment
and disposal. It has also formed a full industry
chain in the water business, including project
investment, planning and design, technology
R&D, engineering and construction and
operations management, among others.

As of 30 June 2021, Everbright Water had
invested in and held 143 water projects,
commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB25.747 billion. It also secured 4 EPC
projects and 2 O&M projects. These projects
are designed to have an annual waste water
treatment capacity of 2,079,259,000 m?, an
annual reusable water supply capacity of
88,184,000 m?, and an annual water supply
capacity of 310,250,000 m?,
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)
As of 30 June 2021, Everbright Water’s water
projects are summarised as follows:
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REXEH)
EBMEE)
NARFEIRIA O] ()

(ifl)

IRIRIKTEG ()
BHE-_Z-—ExXA=+
B AR SEKBIEE
BRI

Designed water
treatment capacity

(m/annum)
Project status Number of projects R KRR
1B B ke 18 B EE (&) (SLHXKF)
In operation* 116 1,966,328,000
¥
Under construction 15 367,920,000
e

*

including O&M projects
EERTEYEIEE

In terms of market development, during
the period under review, Everbright Water
purchased a 65% equity interest in Huantang
Company to enter Tianjin’s water market and
enhance the Group’s market deployment in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region. The purchase
of the majority equity interest not only set
a precedent for the SOE Mixed-ownership
Reform in Tianjin Municipality and the Binhai
New Area, but was also Everbright Water’s
first attempt under the SOE Mixed-ownership
Reform. In the first half of 2021, Everbright
Water secured 5 new projects with a total
investment of approximately RMB1.069 billion.
The new projects are designed to have a daily
waste water treatment capacity of 225,000 m?
and a daily reusable water supply of 45,000 m?.

MIGHERE KKK
REEHRNEERERQR
65% % 1 - B A KZEKE
MG M AEBNFEE
BIEHATSEHE  LWAEE
REARZHBETERKX
BT REEFEMERRR
FATHEAR - RN RKIEE
BRM A ENERERE -
TET—FE¥F HRK
BB ESSEFIER - &
KEHDAREE10.691ETT :
G E R AR EEISK
225,000 5K ~ HfEAIK
45,0003 7K °
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Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)

In terms of project construction, Everbright
Water continued to carry out its project
construction work in an orderly manner. During
the period under review, 2 projects completed
construction and commenced operation, and
3 projects completed construction, with a
total designed daily water treatment capacity
of 111,000 ms. 2 projects commenced
construction, with a designed daily water
treatment capacity of 40,000 me.

In terms of operations management, during the
period under review, a total of 4 waste water
treatment plants of Everbright Water received
regulatory approval for tariff hikes, ranging
between 8% and 58%.

During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental water sector contributed
an EBITDA of HK$1,085,657,000, a 34%
increase compared with the first half of 2020.
Environmental water contributed a net profit
attributable to the Group of HK$423,366,000,
a 44% increase compared with the first half
of 2020. The increase in profit was mainly
attributable to the rise in construction activities,
the improvement of operation and the
expansion of business, driving the increase in
construction service revenue and operation
service revenue.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SELE (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBWME(Z)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued) VAWNE Y .3 A 1€ =)
(i)  ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued) (i) BIRKIE (&)
Major operating data relating to environmental —EZ—F F¥F o RERK
water during the first half of 2021 are Bz TEELYEBEMN
summarised in the table below: T~
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 Change
BZ Bz

“E--% —2-%F
~A=TH ~AZTH Bt

AR 1EREA g
Waste water treatment FKEEE
volume ('000 m?) (FIAHH) 803,357 746,818 8%
(iv) EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (iv) HERE

As China’s backbone environmental protection EATEEBIRREEHHE
equipment R&D and manufacturing provider, ER - AEERBERER
the Group’s equipment manufacturing sector B K RE S KRR BT S 4
leverages Everbright Environmental Technical (BEM)BRARAABEEF
Equipment (Changzhou) Limited as the main B IR ER L ER
platform to carry out traditional and new MEEIIEEFRE « #E—
business, as well as relevant work, in a steady HIBEN R ERERLM
and orderly manner. The sector has further fiL °

solidified its leading position in the waste-to-
energy equipment industry.
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Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(iv)

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)

In terms of market expansion, during the
period under review, equipment manufacturing
signed 10 external sales contracts, and sold
11 sets of equipment to external markets,
including 8 sets of grate furnaces, 2 sets of
flue gas purification systems and 1 set of
leachate treatment systems. In the first half of
2021, it secured a set of contracts relating to
external equipment sales, worth a total contract
value of approximately RMB177 million. In
addition, equipment manufacturing set up the
Everbright Electric Appliance Division. Starting
from the water purifier series, the division
independently undertook the whole operational
process including design and R&D, market
development, sales and after-sales services,
representing the Group’s encouraging progress
in the consumer market.

In terms of equipment supply and services,
during the period under review, equipment
manufacturing commenced 45 service
items, spanning across 16 provinces and
municipalities in China. It provided 22 sets
of grate furnaces to projects of the Group
and external customers, which have a
designed daily waste processing capacity of
11,700 tonnes. In addition, it sold 95 sets
of equipment, covering grate furnaces, gas
purification systems and leachate treatment
systems.

In terms of after-sales services, during the
period under review, equipment manufacturing
signed 65 contracts in relation to external after-
sales services, worth a total contract value of
approximately RMB62.53 million. Throughout
the first half of 2021, equipment manufacturing
provided 116 after-sales service projects,
including 73 internal ones and 43 external
ones.
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Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued)

(iv)

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)
During the period under review, equipment
manufacturing insisted on technological
innovation, and accelerated the pace of
industrial upgrading. Leveraging the Group’s
existing projects, it carried out a number
of technical projects and research topics,
covering grate furnace for medical waste
incineration, selective catalytic reduction
(SCR) denitrification technology, grate furnace
control system, hydraulic pressure station and
distributed control system (DCS) integration
project. In addition, equipment manufacturing
manufactured and completed the trial run of
the first sample domestic higher heating value
water-cooled grate furnace.

ECO-RECYCLING

The Group’s eco-recycling sector rides on the
“Five Points in One Line” process model for
waste sorting, with a focus on 3 main business
areas, namely waste sorting and zero-waste
cities, environmental sanitation integration and
resource recycling. It has positioned itself as
a first-class investor and operator in waste
sorting and resource recycling across China.

During the period under review, eco-recycling
adhered to the strategic plan of “One Body
and Two Wings” and the “Five Points in One
Line” process model to carry out market
expansion work. The sector had been tracking
several potential business opportunities in
Beijing, Tianjin, Shandong, Jiangsu, Anhui,
Guangdong, Yunnan and other places,
involving recycling of construction and bulky
waste, waste sorting and environmental
sanitation integration, waste collecting,
transferring and transporting, among others.
Among which, the Group secured a contract
for Jiangsu Changzhou Economic Zone Waste
Sorting Pilot Service. With a service period of
3 years, the project has already commenced
operation.
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(vi)

GREENERGY

The Group’s greenergy sector adheres to the
development philosophy of “Green, Healthy
and Intelligent” lighting. It focuses on the
R&D, manufacturing and sales of energy-
saving healthy lighting products, as well as
software and hardware products relating
to the development of smart cities that are
based on greenergy’s intelligent light poles.
Greenergy aims to provide lighting services
for different scenarios and purposes, including
urban streets and tourism sites, in addition
to solutions to the development of smart
cities. The sector targets to become a leading
integrated service provider specialised in
energy-saving lighting and development of
smart cities in China.

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, greenery signed the contracts,
based on an EMC model, for Tianjin Jinghai
Urban District Streetlight Retrofitting Project
(“Tianjin Jinghai Project”) and Jiangsu Nanjing
Jiangbei New Material Science and Technology
Park Project (“Nanjing Jiangbei Project”). In
addition, greenergy secured, based on an
EPC model, 5 lighting projects in Shandong,
Jiangsu, Shaanxi, Zhejiang and Guangdong.
The sector also obtained 1 equipment supply
project in Guangdong, with a total contract
value of approximately RMB51.39 million.
Greenery signed 59 contracts for the internal
and external direct sales of the Everbright New
Sodium Lamps (the “Lamp”), with a contract
value of approximately RMB4.43 million in total.
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(vi)

GREENERGY (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, greenergy’s Tianjin Jinghai
Project commenced construction, and Nanjing
Jiangbei Project commenced and completed
construction. Shandong Ji'nan Sungeng
Street Streetlight Retrofitting Project, which
was implemented based on an EPC model
also completed construction. Additionally, 5
EPC projects secured by greenergy during the
period under review commenced construction
and the construction work proceeded
smoothly.

During the period under review, greenergy
actively promoted the R&D and optimisation
of its lighting products, which laid a good
foundation to improve the product portfolio and
expand the business scope. The achievements
included completion of the R&D of the Lamp
products with low color temperature and full
power models, which have obtained relevant
verification reports from the National Quality
Supervision Testing Center; and completion
of the development of several study desktop
lamps and craft lamps. In addition, greenergy’s
Shenzhen branch has obtained the AAA
Enterprise Credit Certification; while the Ji'nan
branch has obtained the qualification for
Municipal Construction General Contracting
Works as well as Grade Ill Qualification for
Urban and Road Lighting Project.
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(vii)

ENVIROTECH

Being the Group’s technology R&D and
innovation engine, the envirotech sector has
been leveraging its “Four-in-One” technological
innovation and R&D layout with platforms in
Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Nanjing and Qingdao,
to foster and accelerate the Group’s strategic
transformation, structure optimisation and new
business development. The sector aims to
become a global platform dedicated to green
technological innovation and conversion.

In terms of R&D layout, during the period
under review, envirotech strived to cater for
development of traditional business, new
business and the future development needs,
to promote R&D work. By responding to the
needs of the Group’s other business sectors
to facilitate their business development,
envirotech completed many technical support
services for system designs, covering grate
furnace, flue gas purification, leachate
treatment and control systems.
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(vii) ENVIROTECH (continued) (vii) #xEREI(E)
The Group’s major R&D progress and results in TR —F E¥F  AEH
the first half of 2021 are summarised as follows: FERLIF B R MR
/(U N
Business area Research results/Topics
Ey St RAKR/RE
Solid waste e Completed performance testing on R&D of and optimisation of
treatment technologies relating to high capacity wet de-acidification systems
ERE 32 for waste incineration, with all indicators superior to relevant industry

standards
RASNFEREREM I R GRS BECRMTRX e ZH R - S8
BERTEEE

Flue gas treatment

EREE

Completed over 10 project design cases on the optimisation of
application of flue gas recirculation system
ERBRERAGERBCRITTA10%E®E R NRz

Intelligent control e
& REE

Self-developed intelligent control research and application technologies
for waste incineration, which had been applied in the Group’s waste-to-
energy projects in Boluo County of Guangdong and Lantian County of
Shaanxi, with trial runs completed

B EME RN RIALEE R HIRR R ERRMEREEE TR ERE
ENPRFAE AR R EEIEE TR AGET

Biomass utilisation

EMENA

Completed trial run and performance test of activated carbon coupling
technologies for biomass power generation plant, providing recycling
solutions for biomass treatment
EPESHRBLRBELEREMTKHET  TRELAR  RENE
BEREERIEAR
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Business Overview (continued) EBWEE)
Business Review of 8 Business Sectors (continued) VAWNE Y .38 A 1€ =)
(vii) ENVIROTECH (continued) (vii) ZxEREI(E)
Business area Research results/Topics
E3 St RAKR/RE
Waste sorting e Everbright Intelligent Renewable Resources Recycling System,
WIR D developed under the intelligent waste sorting key technology research
project, was put into commercial use and achieved satisfactory results in
the trial run at the Group’s waste sorting projects in Changzhou City of
Jiangsu and Yingtan City of Hunan
B R BHARRMAR AR EONAT LB EEREREGRA
BA RAEEE TR IHESNNAEEEN R BRERR B
TIERRE
e Completed the prototype manufacturing and trial run of the intelligent
waste sorting bins, which were displayed at 2021 |E Expo China
BRARDBRTREEERENRAR R —FHREREER L
Smart city e R&D of smart city systems based on smart light poles had been carried
BEWT out with emphasis on the smart city and smart gateway themes, with
relevant R&D results had been put into test in selected streets in Tianjin
Municipality and Jiaozhou City of Shandong Province
ERBERENSEATMARMERECEEEZRMAS L AREE
F o RERRIERKZERILEBMNOARERETRE
As of 30 June 2021, patents that were granted Hr—_Z-_—F A=+
to the Group are summarised in the table H: X NEFESEEEFIH
below: BMF
First half As of

year of 30 June 2021
2021  (accumulated)

#z

—T-—F

—E--& NA=ZTA

L¥E (25)

Granted patents RESR(E) 91 1,084
Invention patents BHREF| 9 123
Utility patents ERLEA 62 845
Software copyright licenses HUHEEER 12 108
Appearance patents HEEF 8 13
Major scientific essays EERIBR(E) 3 N/A TiER
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(vili)

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING

With the Group’s business transformation,
the environmental planning sector leverages
on Everbright Ecological and Environmental
Planning and Design Institute (the “Institute”) as
the main platform, with a focus on the fields of
environmental protection and energy. It strives
to build core technological capabilities, and
expand the business scope and industry chain,
so as to become a first-class planning and
design institute in China.

While continuing to undertake the Group’s
internal business, the Institute strengthened
its efforts to explore external business
opportunities through various means, such
as organisational optimisation and synergistic
expansions. During the period under review, it
signed a number of internal and external service
contracts in the field of consulting and design,
EPC and others, with a total contract value of
over RMB101 million.

In addition, during the period under review, the
Institute made an active effort to obtain relevant
qualifications. It has obtained the Grade A
Qualification for Environmental Engineering
Work for Solid Waste and Grade | Qualification
for Professional Contracting of Environmental
Protection Engineering Work and, progressing
towards the goal of becoming a grade A design
institute. Currently, the Institute has obtained a
set of important qualifications relating to design
and consulting, ecological construction, as well
as environmental engineering in the fields of
electricity, municipalities and the environment.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD EHIfR B EIE

(i)

(i

On 27 July 2021, Everbright Greentech
completed the issuance of the second tranche
of medium-term notes in the national inter-
bank bond market of mainland China with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion and a maturity
period of 3+2 years at a coupon rate of 3.50%
per annum for the first 3 years. Further details
were disclosed in Everbright Greentech’s
announcement dated 29 July 2021.

On 9 August 2021, Everbright Water completed
the issuance of the first tranche of RMB-
denominated Super & Short-term Commercial
Papers in the national inter-bank bond market
of mainland China with a principal amount of
RMBB800 million, an interest rate of 2.40% per
annum and a maturity period of 120 days from
the above issue date. Further details were
disclosed in Everbright Water’'s announcement
dated 10 August 2021.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Given the rapid transformation of the unprecedented
changes in the world in a century, the global
economy has been striving to go back to normal,
despite the uneven recovery of different regions. As
China has entered into the first year of its 14th Five-
Year Plan and Dual Circulation Strategy periods, it
has increasingly focused on high-quality development
after it was positioned to lead the recovery from the
Pandemic and help bring its economy back to normal
by upgrading its economic growth structure, which
has contributed to improved growth forecast.

After the Pandemic that has lasted for more than
one year, people around the world feel more deeply
that we are in a community of common destiny and
tend to pay more heed to sustainable development
issues such as climate change and take more actions
in response. “Achieving Carbon Neutrality” has been
elevated to a new dimension and a new height of
the global development. As China is committed to
“Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” by 2030 and
“Achieving Carbon Neutrality” by 2060, which has
triggered a profound systematic transformation,
accelerating transition towards renewable energy in
terms of the domestic energy structure, transition
towards energy saving in terms of the industrial
structure, and transition towards a green and low-
carbon approach for economic development,
creating new opportunities and challenges for
relevant industries and companies. Meanwhile,
ecological and environmental protection guidelines
and policies such as the Urban Waste Sorting and
Treatment Facility Development Scheme for the 14th
Five-Year Plan Period and the Urban Wastewater
Treatment and Recycling Program for the 14th Five-
Year Plan Period will continue to underscore the
government’s commitment and determination to
address environmental issues, develop ecological
conservation and achieve sustainable development,
regulating relevant industries and companies as
well as leading them towards high-quality growth.
Environmental enterprises are expected to deeply
get involved in the country’s green, low-carbon
and circular development process, through active
exploration in new industry segments, such as
enhancement of ecological value and improvement
of environmental resources. This trend is expected to
bring about a new development cycle for the relevant
companies.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

When confronted by mountains, one finds a way
through; when blocked by a river, one finds a bridge
to the other side. As a leading player in the ecological
and environmental area, as well as a participant
in the development of the circular economy and
zero-waste cities, the Group will adhere to the
corporate mission of being “Devoted to Ecology
and Environment for a Beautiful China” and the
corporate pursuit of “Creating Better Investment
Value and Undertaking More Social Responsibility”.
It will focus on value creation in accordance with
the “Three Carbons” development target and
implement the “Three Five Eight Seven” strategy,
while having a deeper understanding of business
development and stimulating endogenous dynamics
to enhance efforts to follow and analyse top-level
policies, industry trends and policies and market
trends, so as to identify directions and emphasis for
strategic transformation: to leverage technological
innovation as the driving force, to develop core
competitiveness; to develop both asset-light and
asset-heavy businesses; to integrate planning and
design as soft power with technological innovation as
hard power; to explore co-development of veinous
and artery industrial parks; to carry out concurrent
development of municipal and consumer businesses;
to expand domestic and overseas markets; to further
dig out management potential, to continuously
cut cost and boost efficiency; and to strengthen
financial and capital management, to safeguard
steady development of the Group. On the back of
the strategic guidance and full support of China
Everbright Group and the Board, the Group believes
that it will be able to proactively seize a new round
of industry opportunities arising from the country’s
pledge of “Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions”
and “Achieving Carbon Neutrality”. It will be able to
work with the management team and staff to forge
ahead together, face up to challenges, solidify the
Group’s existing strength, and seek innovation, in
order to become a world-leading ecological and
environmental group. The Group also aims to take a
higher stance and longer view to serve the national
strategies and contribute the “Everbright” strength!
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s total assets
amounted to approximately HK$184,513,441,000
with net assets amounting to HK$61,310,032,000.
Net asset value per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$8.068 per share,
representing an increase of 10% as compared to
HK$7.336 per share as at the end of 2020. As at
30 June 2021, gearing ratio (calculated by total
liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 67%,
representing an increase of 2 percentage points as
compared with that of 65% as at the end of 2020.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent approach on cash and
financial management to ensure proper risk control
and low cost of funds. It finances its operations
primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan
facilities from banks. As at 30 June 2021, the Group
had cash and bank balances of HK$15,371,357,000,
representing an increase of HK$3,665,309,000 as
compared to HK$11,706,048,000 at the end of
2020. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balance,
representing approximately 98%, was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

BORROWINGS

The Group is dedicated to enhancing the ways
of financing and improving banking facilities to
reserve funding to support the development of the
environmental protection business. As at 30 June
2021, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$90,370,655,000, representing
an increase of HK$15,391,745,000 as compared
to HK$74,978,910,000 as at the end of 2020.
The borrowings included secured interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$40,786,233,000 and unsecured
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$49,584,422,000.
The borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
representing approximately 66% of the total, and the
remainder is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US
dollars and Polish zloty. Most of the borrowings are
at floating rates. As at 30 June 2021, the Group had
banking facilities of HK$117,151,551,000, of which
HK$38,467,971,000 have not been utilised. The
banking facilities are of 1 to 19-year terms.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Company’s financial statements are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Group’s
investments made outside Hong Kong (including
mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks.
The Group’s operations are predominantly based
in mainland China, which makes up over 99% of its
total investments and revenue. The Group’s assets,
borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, and as such, it forms a
natural hedging effect. With this in mind, the Group
also pursues an optimal allocation of borrowings in
different currencies while setting appropriate levels
of borrowing in non-base currencies, and adopting
proper financial instruments to closely manage
foreign exchange risks.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured
by revenue and receivables in connection with the
Group’s service concession arrangements, bank
deposits, mortgages over property, plants and
equipment, right-of-use assets and the equity interests
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. As at 30
June 2021, the aggregate net book value of pledged
assets and equity interests in subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$96,358,833,000.

COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$7,273,990,000 outstanding in
connection with the construction contracts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company granted financial
guarantee to its subsidiaries. The Board considers it
is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee. The maximum liability
of the Company as at 30 June 2021 for the provision
of the guarantee was HK$399,923,000.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management”, and has built a
comprehensive management structure to maximise
efficiency. The Group’s management holds
Management Decision Committee meetings on a
monthly basis to review current operations and
management, with a view to ensuring the sustainable
development of the Company. The responsibilities
of each functional department and business sector
of the Group are clear with various comprehensive
management systems. Internal control procedures
are sound and have been implemented effectively.
The Company’s Internal Audit Department performs
its internal monitoring functions to ensure that each
functional department and business sector would
strictly comply with the relevant internal control
requirements.

During the period under review, the Pandemic
remained rapidly evolving. The Group had taken
pandemic prevention and control as the main focus
of its daily operation and continued to maintain
various Pandemic preventive measures in place.
Staff was constantly reminded to observe good
personal hygiene and monitor their health conditions.
The Group also actively cooperated with local
governments in implementing pandemic prevention
and control measures, including encourage staff,
upon evaluation, with appropriate personal health
conditions to receive vaccination. The management
and department heads convened special meetings
from time to time to discuss work in relation to the
prevention and control of the Pandemic, which
safeguarded the health and safety of staff and
ensured the normal production of every project.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group is committed to building a comprehensive
risk management culture. It implements the risk
management model of “Integration of Policy,
Procedure and System with Risk-oriented” to
comprehensively strengthen risk management and
risk control. During the period under review, the
Group updated the list of risk factors according to the
progress of the implementation of risk management
system, with a view to continuously enhancing
the systematisation and normalisation level of risk
management.

During the period under review, the Group continued
to uphold the fundamental principle of “maintaining
safe and stable operations while ensuring
compliance with relevant emission standards” and
strictly complied with the relevant national laws
and regulations. In terms of safety, environment
and occupational health, it proactively carried out
routine inspections. Apart from incorporating “Safe
Production Month” into its operation, the Group
paid close attention to safety management and
carried out safety risk assessments to ensure all
projects, whether under construction or in operation,
strictly comply with all safety policies. These steps
secured the stable operation of environmental
protection projects including waste-to-energy,
integrated biomass utilisation, waste water treatment
projects, etc, while enhancing economic benefits.
Besides, the Group continued to move forward
project construction works while accelerating the
finalisation of projects in the preparatory stage. It
also went through due formalities to ensure that
all project construction works were carried out in
compliance with laws and regulations. At the same
time, the Group continued to put in more efforts
in construction safety management to ensure
professional and safe construction.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources are the key strategy of corporate
development which require appropriate personnel
to execute this core strategy. The Group highly
values its human resources management and puts
great emphasis on staff training. We believe that
realising the full potential of our employees is crucial
to our long-term growth. The Group continued to
improve its human resources through internal training
as well as community, overseas, and on-campus
recruitment.

During the period under review, in response to the
Pandemic, training of the Group was adjusted to live
and video training programmes. Training courses in
relation to safety and environmental management,
“Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving
Carbon Neutrality”, procurement management,
and corporate culture were held to enhance
management’s and staff’s general competence.

To enhance the management’s general competence
as well as enable them to understand the operation
of different business sectors and regions more
comprehensively, the Group conducted internal
selection and recruitment for management staff in
new business sectors. Besides, through internal
transfer and re-assignment, management of regional
management centres could learn and grow in new
business sectors and regions.

To continue to improve training management, the
Group issued the Policy of Lecturer and Syllabus
Management.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had approximately
11,750 employees. Details of the total employee
benefit expense for the period under review are set
out in note 4 to consolidated financial statements.
Employees within the Group are remunerated
according to their qualifications, experience, job
nature, performance and with reference to market
conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance
bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such
as medical insurance and a mandatory provident fund
scheme to employees in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
During the period under review, the Group
continuously implemented relevant work of the
risk management system to effectively control the
principal risks faced by the Group.

Policy changing risk: The policy and the
implementation requirements of the cancellation of
national subsidies have been basically confirmed,
and the policies and plans related to reducing
wastes, “Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions”
and “Achieving Carbon Neutrality” have been
promulgated, all of which will bring new opportunities
and challenges to the development of the industry
and the Group. The Group issued the “25 Measures
to Address the Cancellation of National Subsidies”
to comprehensively manage investment quota and
project entry, and to actively and horizontally expand
business under the existing traditional model through
synergy so as to reduce the reliance of business on
the policies. Meanwhile, the Group actively made an
in-depth analysis of the impact of “Peaking Carbon
Dioxide Emissions and Achieving Carbon Neutrality”
objectives on the development and operation and
developed a model for calculating carbon emission.
For reducing wastes, the Group facilitated the
improvement of waste collection and transfer system
in places where projects are located by actively
coordinating transportation of wastes in surrounding
areas as well as adjusting the design of incinerator
thermal load to address the impact of wastes with
high calorific value on the thermal load.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Environmental compliance and safety management
risk: With the continual increase in the number of
operating projects, there is an increasing occurrence
probability of excessive emission of pollutants or
safety accident due to failure to adequately identify
issues in environmental and safety management
during operation, sudden change in external
environment and companies in the surrounding
areas or human error. The Group pays high attention
to environmental compliance and production
safety. It has developed a safety and environmental
management system that integrated its four major
levels, namely the headquarters, business sectors,
regional centres and project companies. Besides,
through on-line environmental information monitoring
platform, the Group could timely monitor its projects’
environmental compliance and carry out special
rectifications on key stages and operations with high
risks so as to actively mitigate major environmental
compliance and safety management risks.

Accounts receivable risk: If the government’s or
clients’ ability to settle service charge is impaired
due to financial difficulties, or if the waste processing
fee of waste-to-energy projects or the on-grid power
tariffs of biomass integrated utilisation projects
cannot obtain national subsidy and provincial subsidy
temporarily after its commencement of commercial
operation due to failure to register into the subsidy
catalogue, the balance of accounts receivable and
the amount overdue may increase. The Group strictly
follows the “Management Method on Accounts
Receivable” and will analyse the ages and the overall
status of accounts receivable on a regular basis.
Based on the analysis, the Group will set receivable
recovery objectives and set up recovery plans to
ensure the reasonableness of credit terms and
the effective operation of recovery mechanism. It
reviewed the recoverability of accounts receivable
and effectively implemented the collection of
accounts receivable.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Construction project management risk: The Group
may expose to management deficiencies regarding
construction safety, quality and progress due to
the insufficient labour force or tight construction
schedule, etc. at the peak of construction. The Group
has advanced the comprehensive implementation of
project information system with relevant functional
modules fully operated. Leveraging on its extensive
experience in project construction, the Group has
formulated standardised construction schedule
based on different types of business and project
scales, and continuously and comprehensively
been tracking each project’s progress. Regarding
the delayed projects, the Group promptly carried
out on-site due diligence and adopted targeted
measures. In addition, the Group has conducted
special inspection and random inspection of the
construction projects, which fully covered various
aspects, such as inspection of important working
procedures, safety and technical disclosures, review
of construction plans and supplier inspection, etc.

Staff assignment risk: Shortage of staff, inadequate
key personnel or failure to recruit enough managerial
staff, technical staff (particularly leading technical
talents) and experienced staff could affect the
realisation of operating and strategic goals of
the Group. The Group continued to enhance
the informatisation level of human resources,
and completed the launch and operation of
the organisation structure management and
remuneration management modules. It has also
stepped up its efforts in providing professional
training in order to enhance the comprehensive
quality and professional skills of the employees in
all aspects. The Group actively conducted online
lectures, training and examinations in accordance
with the requirements of pandemic prevention
and control, which has accelerated the building
of its talent teams. Besides, under the existing
mechanisms and framework, the Group has enriched
the welfare of employees, optimised the employee
incentive system, and kick-started work in relation
to the development of a long-term supplementary
medical insurance system with an aim to improve its
market competitiveness in terms of remuneration.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

New business investment and market competition
risks: If the Group fails to effectively analyse and
reasonably predict the industry development trend
or lacks adequate research of the newly rolled-out
policy plans during the shift from municipal facilities
to consumer products market, it may not be able to
identify new business investment opportunities or
launch new business/investment at an appropriate
timing. The Group stepped up its effort in tracking
and research of government’s policy plans, in
particular plans relating to “Peaking Carbon Dioxide
Emissions” and “Achieving Carbon Neutrality” and
the 14th Five-year Plan, while strengthening its
analysis on new sectors, new technologies and new
status of competition. The organisational structure
for market expansion (i.e. “headquarters for project
organisation and co-ordination + business sector
for project development on its own”) has been
formed. The Group strived to reinforce its business
development momentum by co-operation and
co-ordination among business sectors. The Group
vigorously developed heat supply business of the
existing biomass and waste-to-energy projects
to foster strong synergy among waste-to-energy
projects and treatment of food waste, kitchen
waste, industrial waste and municipal sludge. To
develop a diversified business model featuring “3
major business areas of environment, resources and
energy” and “Five Points in One Line”, the Group
proactively conducted research and planning for an
ecosystem-oriented development model.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E w5 7

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Procurement compliance risk: Failure to conduct
procurement tender in accordance with the relevant
laws, regulations or rules or failure to strictly
implement the supplier/contractor admittance and
evaluation mechanism could lead to non-compliant
operation or the purchase of inferior but high-
priced materials. By perfecting systems, measures,
guidelines and standard documents into its “four-in-
one” institutional system on an ongoing basis, the
Group has optimised its management procedures,
established an external expert database and stepped
up its efforts in introducing external experts who
are not listed in the system, with a view to gradually
increasing the number and percentage of external
experts participating in evaluation of bidding. The
Group made full use of tools such as “feature codes
inspection” and “TianYanCha.com” on its platform for
tendering and procurement to identify bid rigging and
collusive bidding and once verified, the Group will
immediately terminate the bidding qualification of the
relevant suppliers and will put such suppliers on the
blacklist. In addition, the Group actively established
a tendering and procurement agency to further
enhance the compliance management of projects
tendered in accordance with laws.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The Group pays close attention to the operational
impacts brought to the environment and society.
The Environmental and Social Management System
("ESMS”) has been established in accordance
with the Safeguard Policy Statement of the ADB
and other best practices worldwide. The ESMS
covers the entire project cycle from the early-stage
planning and design to the final-stage operation and
contains requirements in the fields of environmental
and social impact screening and categorisation,
resettlement, indigenous peoples, environmental
impact assessment, information disclosure, public
participation, gender equality, due diligence and
review, and monitoring and reporting. The system
ensures the Group’s operational activities comply
with the international environmental and social
safeguard principles and requirements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group has fully implemented the environmental,
safety, health and social responsibility (“ESHS”)
management system since 2016 to further improve
the implementation of supervision system in business
operation. The system comprises management
standards to provide procedural guidelines on
significant ESHS issue identification, auditing,
incident investigation and reporting, occupational
injury treatment, and contractor ESHS management.
The implementation of the system has not only
promoted sustainable development within the Group,
but also extended its safety culture and relevant
policies to the whole supply chain.

The Board and senior management review
sustainability strategies of the Group on a regular
basis, and revise the strategies when appropriate.

The Group’s waste-to-energy projects are designed
and operated fully in compliance with the Standard
for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste
Incineration (GB18485-2014), local standards,
as well as other requirements as set forth in the
environmental impact assessment reports approved
by the local government, while the daily average
values of online flue gas continuously monitored
parameters are well below the respective emissions
limits as stipulated under the Industrial Emissions
Directive (2010/75/EU) and its relevant annexes and
amendments. Moreover, all of the Group’s biomass
combustion operations meet the Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-
2011), local standards, as well as other requirements
as set forth in the environmental impact assessment
reports approved by the local government.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group continued proactively and timely
disclosing emissions data and environmental
management information of its projects on Everbright
Environment’s corporate website, including online
flue gas disclosure of daily average emissions
rates of all the Group’s operating waste-to-energy
projects. The Group also devoted to improving
the information sharing platforms which connects
with the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters and
Shenzhen management office for real-time capture of
projects’ operational information to ensure compliant
operation, and to timely report the performance of the
Group’s projects to the stakeholders.

THE IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC

Amid the regular Pandemic prevention and control,
the Group has given full consideration to all the
pandemic-related risks as well as prevention and
control measures in its daily operation. With the
joint efforts of the management and all employees,
infection case in the workplace was maintained at
zero. During the period under review, the Group’s
project construction and operation all returned to
normal and the results continued to improve.

In mid to late July 2021, the Pandemic resurged in
various provinces and cities in China. The Group
re-affirmed its requirements for all business units to
make arrangements for internal staff and personnel
of contractors to properly implement pandemic
prevention and responsive measures based on the
requirements of local governments and actual work
conditions. Such measures include minimising the
flow of people, reserving sufficient materials for
production, daily lives and pandemic prevention,
paying attention to employees’ health conditions,
providing sufficient protection for the employees, and
ensuring safe and stable production of projects as
well as compliance with relevant emission standards.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

REEMSEEE)

$§E@%§%§%H¥I§D¥TI§ B &5

PEE T3R5 EPE*MMM
&E%%%’aﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%
VBT A E S B EAEB W

ERERENBNYE AEEE
FﬁﬁfZ_A;iALﬂ'b
E“?%Hﬁ RINEERLE

T%EEEMZ“‘ﬁ'ﬁ
ﬁ%ﬁﬁE%TLz Ko gl %
wRAEERFDEHRSHENE
BRH -

AR EmARIETE
B AEBHIEERlgs
T AEBEEAEELFED
N EBSERZBER & Z
g TREAEEBREINZ
AT BEEFTIERRI TR
o BN AEEERAE
BRFELSMMEAED 2AERELE
BOEERELA -
ﬁﬁ:-:—itﬂ$?@'%
B AEBERBEBAZEAE TR

E'K%lﬁm§$gﬁ%$
RSB ER R THEERIE
o BBREE T RINBEMA

B g RRBHERYEER
WmAONEIRE ﬁ%ﬂﬁimi
EEENHREME  BIET
fBEBER RBET %fiﬁ%
W MREELERELE
e



Interim Report 2021
—ER--FhHRE

Disclosure of Interests
BEEREY

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the Company’s chief executives
and their respective associates in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Long position in shares of the Company REAATRDZHFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held total issued
(ordinary shares) shares o
Nature of BAEZ HIEEET
Name of Director Capacity interest f 7 & B Bfn B %
EENA E40) ERItE (Eak) Bt
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Beneficial Owner Personal 2,740,740 0.04%
B ERAA fAA
Hu Yanguo Beneficial Owner Personal 240,000 Below 0.01%
HHIEE BRBEEA fAA 1530.01%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 11,154,810 0.18%
BB BB A EA
Note: Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue sk : BRER-_ZT=_—F<A=THHK

as at 30 June 2021.
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Disclosure of Interests B E ¥

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares of Everbright Greentech,
a listed subsidiary of the Company

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EERESTHRABERD -

R REFTEA 2 S
KRB (4)

REQBZ LTHMEARRKES
BRERGOZ2HA

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held total issued

(ordinary shares) shares

Nature of RFEZ HIEBET

Name of Director Capacity interest 8B e B 2

EEE a1 ERItE (Zak) B2 tpm

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Beneficial Owner Personal 67,549 Below 0.01%

B EREAA A {E320.01%

Hu Yanguo Beneficial Owner Personal 287,000 0.01%
HIEE BRBEAA aA

Qian Xiaodong Beneficial Owner Personal 242,000 0.01%
EER BHAAA @A

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 100,494 Below 0.01%

BB EREBA (VN 1£10.01%

Note: Based on 2,066,078,000 shares of Everbright Greentech
in issue as at 30 June 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the period under review was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 30 June
2021, the following persons (other than any Directors
or chief executives of the Company) were substantial
Shareholders and had interests or short positions
in shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:
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EERERMOKEF 2 ER

REEHA - ARE - EAERH
BAR  EEARKRERMNER
A ESEERTY  BEESR
A] B8 B RN A sl AR ] E )R A
BB B ARG A

T ERREEMA LB K
MR R SRR

BEFEHMAN RZZE=_—F<A
=+8  THAT(ERESHA
NARSITHRAERIN BEBER
B WA R B A% 15 sk A B AR
PR RE(E S5 )E33615
AEFZERMAKEMS AR
A R R TR SOAR T ¢

Number of long

position shares/ Approximate
underlying long percentage of
position shares/ total issued
(ordinary shares) shargs Mo (1)
Tekn/ DEB BT
Name of company Capacity Nature of interest HBEFE R BREEN
SR ah EwltE HA(EER) B/ E
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 2,642,112,137 43.01%
(“Huijin”) tets 2 corporation NGl £
PRESRABREEAR REHI AR B
([E@J)(mm
China Everbright Group e Interest of controlled Corporate interest 2,642,112,137 43.01%
HER A EE e corporation INGIL

GG VNG
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Disclosure of Interests B E ¥

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

M

Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue
as at 30 June 2021.

Huijin is indirectly wholly owned by the State Council
of the PRC and holds 63.16% equity interests of China
Everbright Group. It is deemed to be interested in the
2,642,112,137 shares indirectly held by China Everbright
Group.

China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued
shares of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
(“CE Hong Kong”). CE Hong Kong holds (i) 100%
of the issued shares of Datten Investments Limited
(“Datten”) which in turn holds 55% of the issued shares
of Guildford Limited (“Guildford”); (ii) 100% of the
issued shares of Everbright Investment & Management
Limited (“EIM”); and (iii) 45% of the issued shares of
Guildford, respectively. Out of the 2,642,112,137
shares, 2,430,442,287 shares are held by Guildford.
The remaining 211,669,850 shares are held by EIM.
Accordingly, China Everbright Group is deemed to be
interested in 2,430,442,287 shares held by Guildford and
211,669,850 shares held by EIM.
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2.2,642,112,137 I& B& 1p = A ##
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PR (TR KEE])100% B 81T
&1 o K& 5 5% A () Datten
Investments Limited ( [ Datten ] )
100% B, 817 R% 7 -+ i Datten 8| 3% &
Guildford Limited ( [ Guildford | ) 55%
BEITRD : (WKAREEERR
AR KRIEEEER])100%E 81T
fn ¢ R (iii) Guildford 45% B 3 17 %
% o 12,642,112 137 R BZ {5 R » H
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, the
Company was not notified of any other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or substantial Shareholders) who had interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
The Group had no share options scheme during the
period under review.

59

T EBRREEMA LRI D K&
MR R KRR ()

B EXFRESN  R_FT——
NA=TH - ARAWEEEE
MAL(BEFHARBREHITHA
BREBRRMRINEEA - KR
RA R AR B N AB B A 0 o Bk
BRIBECE 75D E 336K ARTT
ZERMARNEEIORR o

FERERT &
AN 52 B 70 B R HA P N B A A

gl -



60 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Corporate Governance

A\ A g S
1IE3RBA

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group strives to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance as it believes good
corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting the
confidence of the Shareholders. They are crucial
for the development of the Group’s business and
protection of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group
upholds the management principle of “People-
oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic
Management”, and through a set of rules and
regulations, has continuously strengthened internal
control and risk management systems. Furthermore,
by full and timely public disclosure of information,
the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate
values.

The Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules have been duly
adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE (continued)
The Company complied with all Code Provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the six-month
period ended 30 June 2021 with the exception of
Code Provision A.2.1 due to the overlapping roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”) performed by
Mr. Wang Tianyi (“Mr. Wang”) during the period from
25 September 2020 to 31 May 2021. The Board
believed that the balance of power and authority for
the then arrangement was not impaired and the then
arrangement enabled the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently. With
effect from 1 June 2021, Mr. Luan Zusheng was
appointed as the CEO in place of Mr. Wang (“Change
of CEO”), and Mr. Wang remains as the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Wang no longer performed the roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the CEO concurrently.
This arrangement brought the Company back to
conformity with the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
published on 27 May 2021 for more information on
the Change of CEO.

The Company will continue to commit itself to
enhancing its corporate governance appropriate to
the conduct and growth of its business, and from
time to time, to reviewing its corporate governance
practices to ensure the same comply with the CG
Code and align with the latest developments.

Please refer to the Company’s 2020 annual report
published in April 2021 for more information on our
corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 5 executive
Directors and 4 independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”). List of Directors and their Role
and Function is available on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEx”). The number of INEDs represents
not less than one-third of the Board as required
under the Listing Rules, one of whom possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. INEDs
provide the Group with diversified experience and
professionalism. They bring independent views,
advice and judgements on issues relating to the
strategy and development, business operation and
performance, risk control, conflict of interests, etc.,
to ensure the Shareholders’ interests are taken into
consideration.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following 5 Board
committees with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with their respective authority and
duties:

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) currently comprising 3
INEDs, namely Mr. Mar Selwyn (Chairman),
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip and Mr. Zhai Haitao.
Its primary responsibilities include but not
limited to review the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control
systems, internal and external audit and such
other financial and accounting matters of the
Group, and to oversee the relationship between
the Company and Ernst & Young, the external
auditor of the Company, etc. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Company and HKEXx.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEeLEe(E)

2. Risk Management Committee 2. RBEREEZEES
The Risk Management Committee of the ApaEBERELZEe([E
Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) BEEZES | )ARH=F
currently comprises 3 INEDs, namely Mr. Fan BYFRNITESTDCBEE
Yan Hok, Philip (Chairman), Mr. Mar Selwyn, (BEEER) BHRELE -
Mr. Suo Xuquan, Mr. Luan Zusheng, the RERELRE  HITESFHFE
executive Director and the CEO, Mr. Wong Kam KBRS E - TES -
Chung, Raymond, the executive Director, the B4R Ik 5B B = 8 BA L
Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer, & ITEEFREIAERTE
Mr. Hu Yanguo, the executive Director and the Bl - RARARNBET
Vice President, and Ms. Guo Ying, the General B R IR 2 4B AR IE 2 5
Manager of Internal Audit Department and Risk ZHEpk c HEXERESRE
Management Department of the Company. Its (BETRR) BEE NN AIH
primary responsibilities include but not limited BBREEEFNAEEZE
to provide oversight of the Company’s risk BERCEZEERZR -
management programs, and to review the il - B EEREFNA
effectiveness of the management’s processes Wk AR EELZESRE
for identifying, assessing, mitigating and EMRBERE -
monitoring enterprise-wide risks. The terms of
reference of the Risk Management Committee
had been established in writing.

3. Nomination Committee 3. REZEET
The Nomination Committee of the Company RARFREBZEG([REZE
(the “Nomination Committee”) currently Ee | ) HAERHRTESRE
comprises Mr. Wang Tianyi (Chairman), the EEeEFFEITRFRE(ET
executive Director and the Chairman of the FE) UREHUEBE L
Board, and all the 4 INEDs, namely Mr. Fan EHTESTDCELEE B
Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn, Mr. Zhai BIRSEE  BEELERR
Haitao and Mr. Suo Xuquan. Its primary GRS c HIFERE
responsibilities include but not limited to BE(ETRR) FFRE
review annually the structure, size and BEEemEE - AHBRAK
composition (including the skills, knowledge (BIEREEE - NEARERT
and experience) of the Board, to review and H): MERAEETe@RE
report the Board diversity to the Board, to EEERENLZLILEE
assess the independence of the INEDs, to BN FEMITE ERE L
make recommendations to the Board, by taking 4 BEBE(EEe% T/
into account the Board Diversity Policy and FIRCGRERE)REED
the Nomination Policy on appointment or re- FEREFZEXFAEME
appointment or re-designation of Directors and R ESE  THEEA
to assess the qualifications and competencies HMEKKREEN - LAFERFAE
of the candidates, so as to ensure that all IREHE AN EMEBRAE
nominations are fair and transparent, and to URmESSRTERNE
make recommendations to the Board on the Bl EBEABMESE - 12
appointment or re-appointment of the senior ELESBEBESNAR
management. The terms of reference of the 7] KRB P AU A o

Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEXx.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

4.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) currently
comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), the
INED, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board, and 3 other
INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr.
Mar Selwyn and Mr. Suo Xuquan. Its primary
responsibilities include but not limited to
determine, with delegated responsibilities
by the Board, the remuneration packages of
the individual executive Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEX.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee of the Company (the
“Disclosure Committee”) currently comprises
Mr. Luan Zusheng, the executive Director and
the CEO (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Chung,
Raymond, the executive Director, the Vice
President and the Chief Financial Officer,
Mr. Hu Yanguo, the executive Director and the
Vice President, and Mr. Qian Xiaodong, the
executive Director and the Vice President, as
well as Mr. An Xuesong, the Vice President,
and Ms. Poon Yuen Ling, the Company
Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day execution of its continuous disclosure
obligations to the Disclosure Committee to
ensure the compliance of the Company with its
disclosure obligations. The terms of reference
of the Disclosure Committee had been
established in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Other than the 5 Board committees above, the
Company has established the Management Decision
Committee which is responsible for the day-to-
day administration, operation and management
of the business and affairs of the Group. Its
primary responsibilities include but not limited
to review the Group’s major decisions, major
personnel appointment and removal, major project
arrangements, as well as the arrangements of large
capital amount, and to review and formulate the
Group’s development strategies and goals, long-
term business development plans, directions,
policies and guidelines, etc. The Management
Decision Committee also takes charge of reviewing
the investment projects of the Group, after being
recommended by the Project Advisory Committee.
For project risk management and project
technological risk management, the Group has set
up the Project Advisory Committee to monitor and
assess risks regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects as
well as assess the technologies used in different
investment projects. For project financial control,
the Group insists on stringent budget management,
and has set up a Budget Management Centre that
focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In
addition, the Group has also set up Internal Audit
Department and Risk Management Department to
perform internal audits, and risk management and
control functions respectively to bolster the Group’s
management standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for Directors’ transactions in securities
of the Company. Having made specific enquiries to
the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as
set out in the Model Code throughout their tenure
during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information of the Directors since the
Company’s 2020 annual report is as follows:

(1)

Mr. Wang Tianyi resigned from the position of
the CEO and the chairman of the Disclosure
Committee. He remains as the executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and
the authorised representative of the Company
under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules (the
“Authorised Representative”) with effect from 1
June 2021;

Mr. Luan Zusheng was appointed as the
executive Director and the CEO, the chairman
of the Disclosure Committee, a member of
the Risk Management Committee and the
Authorised Representative with effect from 1
June 2021;

Mr. Hu Yanguo, the executive Director and
the Vice President, resigned as the Authorised
Representative with effect from 1 June 2021;

The English title of the Company’s “Chief
Executive Officer” remains unchanged. The title
of the Company’s “Deputy General Manager”
had been changed to “Vice President”.
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond is the
executive Director, the Vice President and the
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Hu Yanguo is the
executive Director and the Vice President.
Mr. Qian Xiaodong is the executive Director and
the Vice President. The change of titles does
not affect the substantive responsibilities;

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

RIBCEMRANDE13.618(1) 1k
ZEZENE

$Eﬁ<iﬁﬁ%%>%13515mﬂ%*

BAR

E_TEFERURE

EERE EMT

(1)

FRESEFTAEREE
ZEGEE  BESEIH
TEEREETSEF  RE
ZECXE  FHEZELK
B R EMRAINES.051KT
CERBAR(REREK]) -
%:%:fiﬁﬂfaﬁi
S

ﬁ@%%i%é&%ﬁﬁ%
$%%ﬁ\&ﬁ§ ES
R XE%WE&
&%ﬁ% BT -—FX
A—B#ER

HITERREIBURATE L
ERERERR BZ-F
TERA-HRBAER:

ARATBAEE ] XBE
BB A (RIBE
BRARE), [BIBKIE | BE
BEEFE LIRS - 2B
FEEBRBNTES - BIAH
FRUBARES - SIEBR AR
RUTEERBEE - B
RAEEABAITESRE®
BoBBZBEWRETE
EERE



Interim Report 2021
—ER--FhHRE

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES (continued)

(5)  Mr. Mar Selwyn (“Mr. Mar”), the INED, ceased
to be the chairman of the audit committee
of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited
(“PanAsialum”, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 28 June 2021, and
ceased to be its independent non-executive
director with effect from 23 July 2021.
remains as a senior adviser to the board of
directors of PanAsialum. Mr. Mar also ceased
to be a director of Nexia Charles Mar Fan
Limited (“Nexia Charles Mar Fan”) and became
a consultant of Nexia Charles Mar Fan with

effect from 30 June 2021; and

(6)  Mr. Zhai Haitao (“Mr. Zhai”), the INED, ceased
to be a director and the chairman of the
audit committee of the board of China Asset
Management Co., Ltd with effect from 21
July 2021. Mr. Zhai has been elected as an
independent director of China Life Insurance
Company Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, New York Stock Exchange
and Shanghai Stock Exchange) at its annual
general meeting held on 30 June 2021.
However, his qualification as the independent
director is subject to the approval of the
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory

Commission.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware
of other information which is required to be disclosed

under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has declared payment of an interim
dividend of HK19.0 cents per share (2020: HK14.0
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June
2021, payable to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 10 September
2021. The interim dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders on or around Monday, 4 October 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to the interim dividend, the Register of
Members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 September
2021 to Friday, 10 September 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. Shareholders, whose names
appear on the Register of Members on the record
date, i.e. Friday, 10 September 2021, will be entitled
to the interim dividend. In order to qualify for the
interim dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 September 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim
financial information of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 for the Board’s
approval.

Hong Kong, 12 August 2021

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Interim Financial Report
AR ISR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT mEEmK
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BE-_ZE-_—FXA=1tH81
7~E A

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLAMER

2021 2020
—B-F —Z-%%
(Unaudited) (Unaud|ted)
(REER) (REER)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz BETT AR
REVENUE Wiz 3 26,495,324 18,377,460
Direct costs and operating expenses B ARE2E R (17,994,592) (11,888,239)
Gross profit EH 8,500,732 6,489,221
Other revenue Hiblas 412,678 345173
Other income and gains/(losses), et H I A iz /
(BR)E% (171,940) (48,365)
Administrative expenses THER (1,388,868) (1,069,769)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING BeEBMEER
ACTIVITIES 7,352,602 5,716,260
Finance costs HEBA 5 (1,436,973) (1,132,042)
Share of profits of joint ventures FReEbERA 46,050 106,668
Share of profits of associates ke AN AR 22,311 4,949
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BHARF 4 5,983,990 4,695,835
Income tax FEH 6 (1,379,777) (1,085,690)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD RER A 4,604,213 3,630,145
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EIEE 0
Equity holders of the Company ADAERFEA 3,887,378 3,028,747
Non-controlling interests Eanlligday 716,835 601,398
4,604,213 3,630,145
EARNINGS PER SHARE KNE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY e
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 8

- Basic and diluted -ERREE HK63.28 cents#fll  HK49.30 centsill
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF meEZmBEREK

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BHE_Z-_—9FXA=+H81
~ME A

For the six months ended 30 June
BEZRB=THIEAREA

2021 2020
“g--F “ECEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
HK$000 HKS 000
BT BETT
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD REBR AR 4,604,213 3,630,145
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be ?ﬁ&%ﬁfﬁ E%ﬁ’ ZERRL
reclassified to proft or loss in subsequent periods: A 2EWA /(B )
Exchange differences: BjEH
Exchange differences on translation of RERNSBELZEREE
foreign operations 1,934,608 (927,584)
Net other comprehensive incomey/(loss) that may be EAE BERUEEND ﬁ%ﬁn%z

reclassified to proft or loss in subsequent periods ~ Ef 2 EIRA /(B ) FE 1,934,608 (927,584)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be ﬁ?é%ﬁfaﬂ\ﬁ‘iﬁﬁ %E FRRERL

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ Ef 2B/ (BE) :

Other financial assets measured at fair value Ny @W\ﬁﬂ%@qﬂﬂéz

through other comprehensive income: H’r@ AR
Changes in fair value INIUEE] 5,213 (2,044)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be RE#% BT €& ﬁ/ @éﬁﬁ A

reclassified to proft or loss in subsequent periods A 2EUA /(8 )@ 5213 (2,044)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) TEREH2 Vali)

FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX BHBHE) 1,930,821 (929,628)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD A Eif 2 m N5 6,544,034 2,700,517
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EaEh -

Equity holders of the Company RDFEEHAA 5,480,073 2,244,037

Non-controlling interests R 1,063,961 456,480

6,544,034 2,100,517
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B BAARR K

30 June 2021

Ia

—FRA=1H

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E--F “T-TF
AA=+H +=A=1+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BifsE BT T BET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FNBEE
Investment properties REME 180,252 176,860
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « R k& E 8,043,234 6,114,910
Right-of-use assets CRELE 994,184 822,265
9,217,670 7,114,035
Goodwill EES 2,242,940 2,016,817
Intangible assets BYEE 27,237,482 24,926,597
Interests in joint ventures AECEER 1,112,881 1,011,847
Interests in associates B N A 533,836 495,616
Contract assets ANAEE 9 92,559,827 79,619,686
Finance lease receivables EVE R E U IR 16,120 16,100
Other financial assets Hib B i5& 248,625 716,807
Other receivables, deposits Hib WA -« g
and prepayments NIERTIE 10 4,500,397 3,587,975
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 305,527 246,945
Total non-current assets ERENEEELE 137,975,305 119,752,425
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories ﬁ,"j 1,446,170 1,059,140
Contract assets BHBE 9 13,223,019 12,467,366
Finance lease receivables mﬁ BHRERKZ 355 337
Other financial assets HBHEE 219,839 -
Debtors, other receivables, e BR R« EoAth FE UL
deposits and prepayments TIE - mermEMTE S 10 16,275,612 13,201,126
Tax recoverable EEESE 1,784 668
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER 11 554,143 837,770
Deposits with banks with maturity 7 2B =104 2
period over three months RITER 11 23,037 7,585
Cash and cash equivalents HENHLEEY 12 14,794,177 10,860,693
Total current assets MEBEELE 46,538,136 38,434,685
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT RE SRR R (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
30 June 2021 —E-—9¢XA=+H

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—BE--f —T-EF

AA=+H +=A=1+—-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BifsE BT T BET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEARE
Creditors, other payables and ~ FEfTERFN » H b EFT
accrued expenses DERESER 13 22,070,176 18,193,656
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE
- Secured —BHA 3,170,319 2,989,868
- Unsecured —EIK 9,818,921 7,509,306

12,989,240 10,499,174

Tax payable AREE 268,519 212,959
Total current liabilities mENEERE 35,327,935 28,905,789
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEETE 11,210,201 9,528,896

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & ERTEI & &
LIABILITIES 149,185,506 129,281,321
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e SRR (&)
—E-—%XA=+H

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E--f —T-EF
AA=+H FTZA=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (®E2)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

(i3 BT T BETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnEEE

Other payables H At B R IE 13 1,129,369 917,536

Interest-bearing borrowings HEBE

- Secured —BHEHR 37,615,914 31,420,236

- Unsecured — IR 39,765,501 33,059,500

77,381,415 64,479,736

Deferred tax liabilities ERRIEEE 9,364,690 8,339,445

Total non-current liabilities ERBAELESE 87,875,474 73,736,717

NET ASSETS BEFSH 61,310,032 55,544,604

EQUITY Ewm

Equity attributable to equity ADAERHBA

holders of the Company FEfh S

Share capital A 14 17,329,537 17,329,537

Reserves & 32,229,309 27,732,520
) 49,558,846 45,062,057

Non-controlling interests R 11,751,186 10,482,547

TOTAL EQUITY BnER

61,310,032 55,544,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FEEREER
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BT - —4%XA=+H81
~E A
Goodwil
arising on Property
Share consolication revaluation
capital GRER resenve
A EE EE VEELR
(Unaudited) (Unaudl ed) (Unaudited)
(7427 (742R) (7427
Notes HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
fisk BETT AR BETT
At 1 January 2021 R-E--E-f-H 17,329,537 (986) 90,512
Proft for the period AHRR - = =
Other comprehensive income for the period: BREHRARA -
Changes in fair value of other financial assets N #)\HMW}\JE
measured at fair value through other ZAMEHEEIDRERS
comprehensive income, net of tax (EmBHE) - - -
Exchange differences on translation HERNEREE/ERER
of foreign operations = = =
Total comprehensive income for the period BnemhEg - = =
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year — BHEEEE 28 7 - - -
Capital contributions received by FREMEL Tffﬁiﬂ“ﬁxﬁxﬂzﬁx
non wholly-owned subsidiaries from vt
non-contralling shareholders = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEA - - -
Acquistion of non-controling nterests in N B TiH"Mﬁﬁ
subsidliaries = = =
Dividend declared to non-controling shareholders ~ ERHBATELRRE
of subsidlaries Bl Hx - - =
At 30 June 2021 REE--ERA=TH 17,329,537 (986)* 90,512

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
reserves of HK$32,229,309,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$27,732,520,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2021.

ZERBERRER-_T=-—FX
A=1+RB2ZHEaMBHRRIRAT
A Gﬁﬁﬁﬁ # 32,229,309,000 T

(ZZE=ZF+=A=
F507,732,520,0007T) °

+—8:
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Atributable to equity holders of the Company

KRREREEARE

Other financial

assets

measured at

fair value

through other

comprehensive

income reserve

BRAEA Non-

Exchange A 2ERA Other Reserie Retained controling Total
resenve FE7EM 6381ves fund profits Total interests _ equity
EifE  BHEERE Efhéite ERe REEH iz FERES EalE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(xE28) (xE28) (xE2%) (xE28) (x228) (x228) (x228) (k@28
HSOD HGON OHSIO  HSID GO0 HOID HOWO  HD
ABTTL R8T R8T ABTT EBTTL EETTL EETTL ST
1,007,794 (12,450) 3,295,716 2,223,909 21,038,025 45,062,057 10,482,547 55,544,604
- - - - 3,887,378 3,887,378 716,835 4,604,213
- 5,213 - - - 5,213 - 5,213
1,587,482 - - - - 1,587,482 347,126 1,934,608
1,587,482 5,213 - - 3,887,378 5,480,078 1,063,961 6,544,034
- - - - (982,876) (982,876) - (982,876)
- - - - - - 79,765 79,765
- - - - - - 321,810 321,810
181 - (589) - - (408) 2113 (2,521)
- - - - - - (200,844) (200,844)
2,685,457* (7,237)* 3,295,127* 2,223,909* 23,942,501 49,558,846 11,751,186 61,310,032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EEmEEEE)
CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BHE-_Z-_—F~A=+HL
~MEA
Goodwil
arising on Property
Share consolidation revaluation
capitel FaEE fesere
A EECEE NEEMRER
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(7EZ7) (727 (7EZ7)
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
fisk 8T BT BT
At 1 January 2020 W-5-%&-F-H 17,329,637 (986) 90,512
Profitfor the period HHEEH - - -
Other comprehensive loss for the period: BREHEEES:
Changes i fair value of other financial assets Ez};“@uﬂ\ﬁmw}\ﬁ;
measured at fair value through other hEBEEILERY
comprehensive income, net of tax (ETDF? i) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign REBNERELIELZE
operations - - -
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the period ~ BBRZEUA/(BiR) &8 - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year Bt =EE RS 7 - - -
Capital contributions received by non wholl-owned 2 AMBA DI HERER
subsidiaries from non-controling shareholders WaFEzHEE - - -
Acquistion of non-controling interests in WENBLT R ER
subsicliaries - - -
Dividend declared to non-controling BRHELAEIRER
shareholders of subsidiaries ERRE - - -
At 30 June 2020 RZZZFE5A=1H 17,329,537 (986) 90,512
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RATEGRRARR

Other financial

assets

measured at

fair value

through other

comprehensive

income reserve

RORETA Non-

Exchange  E#ZEHA Other Resene Retained controling Tota
feseng HEZER reserves fnd profis Tota interests _equiy
Eifh  HHAERR Hfbih {52 REEH 4% FERER ERaE
(Unauditec) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(Rg2H) (RE2H) (RE8%) (7427) (7i2r) (7587 (*Ez8) (*5H)
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BB BB BB BB BB EBTTL 8T Lo
(3,133,036) (1,004) 3,157,343 1,668,726 17,235,949 36,346,951 8,379,628 44726579
- - - - 3,028,747 3,028,747 601,398 3,630,145
- (2,044 - - - (2,044) - (2,044)
(782,666) - - - - (782,666) (144,918) (927,584)
(782,666) (2,044) - - 3,028,747 2,244,037 456,480 2,700517
- - - - (798,587) (798,587) - (798,587)
- - - - - - 168,621 168,621
22,200 - 142,138 - - 119,938 (150,051) (30,113)
- - - - - - (185,774) (185,774)
(3,937,902 (3,139) 3,299,481 1,668,726 19,466,109 37,912,339 8,718,904 46,631,243
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

RN A =
FERERE

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 Bz -_—FXA=1+81
7~ E A
For the six months ended 30 June
BZEAB=TRLAEA
2021 2020
“BI-F —TI%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REBEH)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETR BRI
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTVITIES ~ B2 EBIfTEELHE
Profit before tax REaEF 5,983,990 4,695,835
Adjustments for: o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 91 « BiE kR ENE 4 249,745 180,120
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fPRELAENE 4 31,901 26,182
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEERH 4 494,923 335,024
Finance costs BEER 5 1,436,973 1,132,042
Dividend income BEBMA 4 (155) (2,104)
Interest income V9N 4 (65,467) (36,116)
Share of profits of joint ventures FEREC£RT (46,050) (106,668)
Share of profits of associates i H%%A*’“ AR (22,311) (4,949)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AfEEE/ () EE
Other financial assets - unlisted equity EnSikEE
investment —JEERARE (475) (429)
Other financial assets - unlisted investments HiBBEE
AN 4 17,363 (6,260)
Contingent consideration receivable SAREEYTE 4 - 7,692
Impairment of debtors, net ERETEETE 4 142,917 44,104
Impairment of other receivables HifElEUARE 4 5,459 3,435
Impairment of contract assets ANEEHRR 4 8,258 -
Gain on disposal and write-off of property, tlj’% RiENE  BER
plant and equipment, net FE7 R (1,582) (177
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net ~ EXE )y FE 28 128,041 (129,145)
8,363,530 6,138,586
Increase in inventories BEEN (353,133) (380,069)
Increase in contract assets AMBEEN (11,558,334) (9,178,671)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, RS - HiElGR
deposits and prepayments e REMFUBEN (2,125,905) (1,700,279)
Increase in creditors, other payables and BN REATER
accrued expenses T EREN 3,340,438 63,554
Cash used in operations BergR Re (2,333,404) (5,056,875)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mERERERE

CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 Bz _-_—4%XA=+81
~E A

For the six months ended 30 June
BZEABR=TAIAEA

2021 2020
“g--F it 2
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(K&K (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fits BT BETT
Interest received BFlE 65,467 36,116
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) and BREARENE(HE])
overseas income taxes paid REMAER (571,602) (415,079)
Net cash flows used in operating activities nE
(2,839,539) (5,435,838)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES ~ & EEIfi5ELTE
Dividend received ke 155 2,104
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWE BEREE
equipment (1,101,830) (658,929)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,  £ENE - BER
plant and equipment REFEIE 19,669 6,188
Principal portion of lease payments REMNTZALEH (57,248) (122,440)
Additions of intangiole assets BERNEE (2,791,214) (2,374,628)
Acquisttion of subsidiaries YR B A F 15 (797,697) -
Capital contributions to joint ventures TEAENE (32,350) (167,515)
Increase in an amount due from an associate  JEIEE& A RFIE (374) (372)
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments  T/3 ZUB AN RS A2 (925,815) (347,909)
Repayment from finance lease receivables BAMERIGEER 345 302
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets & £ B & & 2 Fr5 308 9,894 -
Decrease in other financial assets EnSBEERYD 236,900 -
Decrease/(increase) in deposits with banks with F3 BB =HA 2 515D
maturity period over three months A/ () (15,275) 16,425

Net cash flows used in investing activities
(5,454,840) (3,546,774)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=TALAEA

2021 2020
“g--F “EC%E
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEn)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETR BETTL
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  REZBfEHLRE
Proceeds from issus of asset-backed BEERER([BEUS
securities (‘ABS’) and medium-term notes % |) R ERZ ([
(“MTN’), net of related expenses paid ZEMEREENR
EfEBRR) 3,618,506 1,406,482
Repayment of ABS EREETHES (31,143) -
New bank and other loans HRETRENED 17,234,132 18,701,679
Repayment of bank and other loans BERTREMER (6,662,889) (5,811,598)
Capital contributions received by non FRENBRAEERERR
wholly-owned subsidaries from WGz AR
non-controlling shareholders 79,765 168,621
Acquisition of non-controling interests Ih-saadiv 3 (2,521) (30,113)
Decrease in amounts due to non-controling  ENHB R AFHERER
shareholders of subsidiaries FERD = (16,546)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BERRIERRD 303,148 14,136
Interest paid 2ffFlE (1,3283,244) (1,057,314)
Interest portion of lease payments REMzHE SR (5,281) (2.231)
Principal portion of lease payments RERZ ALEHR (24,241) (20,896)
Dividend paid to equity holders of ENARARERBEAL
the Company RE (982,876) (798,587)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders Wﬁ BARERRREL
of subsidiaries RE (209,473) (185,774)
Net cash flows from financing activities BBLHMERARETE 11,993,883 7,517,859
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,699,504 (1,464,758)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of period 10,860,693 11,742,819
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net 233,980 (108,234)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRREERALEEY
AT END OF PERIOD 12 14,794,177 10,169,832
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR MR

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

1.1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
China Everbright Environment Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2703, 27th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.

During the six months ended 30 June 2021,
the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are construction, environmental energy
project operation (waste-to-energy plants, food
waste treatment projects, sludge treatment and
disposal projects, leachate treatment projects,
methane-to-energy plants, fecal treatment
projects, fly ash landfill projects, medical waste
treatment projects and solid waste treatment
projects), greentech project operation (integrated
biomass utilisation projects, hazardous and
solid waste treatment projects, solar energy
projects and wind power projects, and provision
of environmental remediation services),
environmental water project operation (waste
water treatment plants, water supply, reusable
water treatment plants, sludge harmless
treatment, sponge city construction, river-
basin ecological restoration, waste water
source heat pump projects, leachate treatment,
research and development of water environment
technologies and engineering projects), conduct
of environmental protection technology research
and development, provision of environmental-
related technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, provision
of environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment, provision of waste sorting,
renewable resources utilisation, sanitation
operation services, sales of energy-saving street
lamps, energy management contract projects,
and investment holding.
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1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 has
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The accounting policies and basis of preparation
adopted in the preparation of the unaudited
interim financial information are consistent with
those adopted in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 except
for the changes in accounting policies made
thereafter in adopting the revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA, which became effective
for the first time for the current period’s financial
information, as further detailed in note 1.3 below.
The unaudited interim financial information is
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The financial information contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected
explanatory notes. The notes include an
explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in
financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2020 annual financial statements.
The condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information
and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
The financial information relating to the year
ended 31 December 2020 that is included in
this unaudited interim financial information as
comparative information does not constitute
the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for that year but is
derived from those financial statements.
Further information relating to those statutory
financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 to the Registrar of Companies as required
by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. The auditor’s report was
unqualified; did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its
report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current period’s
unaudited interim financial information:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
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1.3

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs had
no significant effect on the results and financial
position for the current or prior accounting
periods which have been prepared and
presented.

The Group has not early adopted any standard or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet
effective.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented four reportable segments.

— Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of waste-
to-energy plants, food waste treatment
projects, sludge treatment and disposal
projects, leachate treatment projects,
methane-to-energy plants, fecal treatment
projects, fly ash landfill projects, medical
waste treatment projects and solid waste
treatment projects, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Greentech project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of integrated
biomass utilisation projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects,
solar energy projects and wind power
projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction, upgrade and operation
of waste water treatment plants, water
supply, reusable water treatment plants,
sludge harmless treatment, sponge
city construction, river-basin ecological
restoration, waste water source heat pump
projects, leachate treatment, research
and development of water environment
technologies and engineering projects,
to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as
well as finance income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B ¥ 3R R Kzt

2.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

— Others: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection
technology research and development,
provision of environmental-related
technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, provision
of environmental protection project
equipment construction and installation
services and sales of related equipment,
provision of waste sorting, renewable
resources utilisation, sanitation operation
services, sales of energy-saving street
lamps, and energy management contract
projects from which it generates revenue.

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resource between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in
associates and joint ventures, investments
in other financial assets, deferred tax assets
and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current
taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segment and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables and
other corporate liabilities.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
equipment and provision of technological
services, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including technical know-how, is not
measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation” (“Adjusted EBITDA”). To
arrive at Adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to the individual segment, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, management is
provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales
and revenue from technological services),
depreciation and amortisation and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.

2.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

2.

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. KEDEER(E)
(continued)
Information about profit or loss, assets (i)

(i)

and liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the

period is set out below.

For the six months ended 30 June

B HEERAEEZEH
F$%% mﬁlﬁﬁ
ICEX T

BENH=1Hi <A

Environmental energy
project construction
and operation

RANKRERRERES
2021 2020
“B--F ZEC2E%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Segment revenue:
Revenue from external customers
Inter-segment revenue

AHKE
RENRRPKE
DEREME

18,613,894 11,672,778

Reportable segment revenue

BTREZD e

18,613,894 11,672,778

Reconciliation:
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue derived from
the Group’s external customers

HE:
D HEhE

REAEENREPZ
RYHRED TR
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAREREE BRRKBERREREE Hit ag
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--%  “ZCBf ZBC-F ZZ-%F ZB--f CZ2-% ZE--f  ZZ-%%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REBR)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT BT AT
4,318,203 4,245,687 3,112,935 2,120,086 450,292 338,909 26,495,324 18,377,460
539 188 - - 1,032,675 1,153,669 1,033,214 1,153,857
4,318,742 4,245,875 3,112,935 2,120,086 1,482,967 1,492,578 27,528,538 19,531,317
(1,033,214) (1,153,857
26,495,324 18,377,460
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

2.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. KEDFBER(E)

(continued)

() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) Bi% BERAGBZER
and liabilities (continued) (%)

For the six months ended 30 June

BENH=1HIE A

Environmental energy

project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
2021 2020
ZB--f  _TCTF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR
Segment results: PEEE
Reportable segment profit BTREDDREA
(Adjusted EBITDA) (AR AEBITDA) 5,520,097 4,084,822
Elimination of inter-segment profits HHE D EE AR
Reportable segment profit derived from REAEBNAEFZ
the Group’s external customers ATREDDEA
Finance costs HHBER
Depreciation and amortisation, including FTEREBH(BERIE
unallocated portion 1)
Unallocated head office and corporate income kA REZATRAZUA

Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before tax

APEARAREEFR

EakHmNaN
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAEEREE RRKBEBREREE Hih b
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--% -T-%§f  CZE--F  CZZ-%F  E--% 3% ZE--F CZZ-ZF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER) (REBR)  (RERR)  (REEQ)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
1,636,791 1,595,103 1,085,657 810,659 349,818 334,729 8,593,263 6,825,313
(334,846) (367,208)
8,258,417 6,458,105
(1,436,973)  (1,132,042)
(776,569) (541,326)
2,693 7,367
(63,578) (96,269)
5,983,990 4,695,835
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. KEDFBER(E)
(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) #B% EBEEREEZEN
and liabilities (continued) (#&)
For the six months ended 30 June BENA=FHIANEA
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
2021 2020
“E--f  CZTCEE

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)
HK$'000  HKS$'000

BETT BETT

Other segment information: At HEH
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 296,770 182,059
Impairment of debtors, net RSN ERTE 121,109 35,145
Impairment of other receivables HthEWFIERS = -
Impairment of contract assets alEERE 5,83 -
Additions to investment properties, property, ~ EIFIEEREME - HE

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets ~ FiE R B R EREAE

during the period 234,008 93,283
Additions to intangible assets and non-current IR E R EEREREE

portion of prepayments during the period ISR 1,732,453 1,517,756

Additions to non-current portion of contract ~ EINIEE ALV EE 7 FEEIE
assets during the period = 12,577,310 7,672,902
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAEEREE RRKBEBREREE Hih b
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--% -T-%§f  CZE--F  CZZ-%F  E--% 3% ZE--F CZZ-ZF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER) (REBR)  (RERR)  (REEQ)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
358,498 275,135 59,932 46,684 41,520 29,070 756,720 532,948
- - 21,808 8,959 - - 142,917 44,104
- - 5,459 3,435 - - 5,459 3,435
- - 2,275 - - - 8,258 -
880,804 562,208 13,149 11,584 105,410 26,632 1,233,371 693,707
757,552 1,157,564 138,102 75,183 20,065 14,796 2,648,172 2,765,299
705,205 1,056,263 1,846,679 1,385,235 - - 15,129,194 10,114,400
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bf % 3R&RMizE

2.

REEARE (RE)BRAF

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. REDFER (&
(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) Bi% BERAGBZER
and liabilities (continued) (&
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1 S
—_— ? _— ¢ — 7 % E
/\ﬁ_'i'E ‘|'—)EL+ H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (8&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI
Reportable segment assets BEFRE 2 HEE 102,456,179 86,929,136
Unallocated head office and corporate assets FORELARLEEE
Consolidated total assets GREENE
Reportable segment liabilities ETHRECHHEE 51,565,900 40,922,430
Unallocated head office and corporate liabiliies ~ FAREATRELERE
Consolidated total liabiliies FABEER

(ii) Information about a major customer
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 and
2020, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10% of the

Group’s total revenues.

(ii) EE@Fﬁ»H
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction

and operation and operation Others Total

BERREAREREL BRABEEREREE Eft ag
At At At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
iy R i i s s R B
—?— ¢ —?—7¢ —7— ¢ —?—7& —7— $ —7—7& :g:_ﬁ :g:gi
/\H_'I'E TZA=1-H ~AZTR +ZA=t-A ~A=TA  TZA=1-A ~A=TA tZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (&z%)  (REER) (BEn)  (REER) (mgn)  (REER) (&z%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETL BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
38,497,863 35,244,764 30,272,853 26,593,869 4,381,026 4,361,908 175,607,921 153,129,677
8,905,520 5,067,433
184,513,441 158,187,110
24715327 22,393,118 18,104,422 15,510,291 3,037,755 2,806,506 97,423,404 81,632,345
25,780,005 21,010,161
123,203,409 102,642,506
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

3. REVENUE 3. Wz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamarnT :

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLAEA

2021 2020
ZBz-F i S 33
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETTL
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&#HW
Revenue from environmental energy project 3B {REBIE B2 R
construction services 13,139,142 7,817,908
Revenue from greentech project SERREEBERERE
construction services 1,117,502 1,735,471
Revenue from environmental water project  B{R/KHKIE B2 RAE Y
construction services 1,417,596 854,948
Revenue from environmental energy project  B{R e 58 BB L RAUE
operation services 3,711,837 2,558,226
Revenue from greentech project operation 4 &8 {712 B EL Ris Iz
services 3,018,959 2,388,147
Revenue from environmental water project  B{R/KISIE B B4 Ris iz
operation services 1,150,697 808,167
Revenue from equipment construction and ~ E£&EE RTERERIEE
installation services and sales Wi 388,887 242,401
Others Hit 61,405 96,508
Total revenue from contracts with REANUEEE
customers 24,006,025 16,501,776
Finance income from service concession  TRI&HSEFE AR HE 7 BT
arrangements WA 2,489,299 1,875,684

Total revenue heart 26,495,324 18,377,460
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REVENUE (continued)

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation
services, greentech project construction
and operation services, environmental water
project construction and operation services
and finance income derived from the loca
government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$25,311,524,000 (six months ended 30 June
2020: HK$16,765,982,000) for the six months
ended 30 June 2021. The revenues are included
in “Environmental energy project construction
and operation”, “Greentech project construction
and operation” and “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segments
as disclosed in note 2 to this unaudited interim
financial information

eI

WS (%)
BE-_E-—FxA=+8
WEREA @ REF HE K
TR 2 IRReERIEH &1
FEBLREWE « FEERR
HERERBERBKE
RRKKEEEENRESR
PR 75 Us 25 K BA S R A R KE B
25 311,524,000 (B &
—E-EFRNA=ZFTHIEN
@ A : %% 16,765,982,000
TL) ° BRI EFT Al RIREE
FREBRERESZ | HE -
[ EIRAREBEREERES]
DERIIRIRKIEEE BER
BE | DEI(FRAREEX
IR IS B R RE2) ©




98

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bf % 3R&RMizE

3.

REEARE (RE)BRAF

REVENUE (continued) 3. W=(#E)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFBRER
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 HEzE-_ZE-_—FHA=1+H
LE7{E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project project  water project
construction construction construction
and operation  and operation  and operation
Segments BRER BERR BRAH Others Total
bEl BHBEREE HAREREE HAREREE ity &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Type of goods and services ~ EYRBHER
Construction services BIERE 13,139,142 1,117,502 1,417,506 - 15,674,240
Operation services BEERE 3,711,837 3,018,959 1,150,697 - 7,881,493
Equipment constructionand  EREERERTERK
installation services and sales k& - - - 388,887 388,887
Others i - - - 61,405 61,405
Total revenue from contracts ~~ BFANREAE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025
Geographical location of EFEfHEHE
customers*
Mainland China REARE 16,542,183 4,134,128 2,551,234 450,292 23,677,837
Germany ZE - 2,333 17,059 - 19,392
Poland U] 274,010 - - - 274,010
Vietnam ke 34,786 - - - 34,786
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFALNELE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2568293 450,202 24,006,025
* The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the ' FPAENERRBRIEES o
services were provided.
Timing of revenue recognition KRR
Over time R-EERR 16,850,979 4,086,597 2,495,896 295,790 23,729,262
Atapoint in time RE-BY = 49,864 72,397 154,502 276,763
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFA%INEHAE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025
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3.

REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Sie)

3. Wa(4#)
RoFREER(E)

HE-_Z_ZTFA=1+H

LE7R1E A
Environmental Greentech Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments RRER SEER BRIk Others Total
bEl BEREREE BEREREE BRREREE Eft 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT EEFT BT BEFTL
Type of goods and services ~ EYMRBHER
Construction services BERE 7,817,908 1,735,471 854,948 - 10,408,327
Operation services BERE 2,558,226 2,388,147 808,167 - 5,754,540
Equipment constructionand  EERERZERE
installation services and sales  RiHE - - - 242,401 242,401
Others i - - - 96,508 96,508
Total revenue from contracts ~ BEA%REAE
with customers 10,376,134 4,123,618 1,663,115 338,909 16,501,776
Geographical location of
customers*
Mainland China 10,127,879 4,120,912 1,661,244 338,909 16,248,944
Germany - 2,706 1,871 - 4,577
Poland 218,009 - - - 218,009
Vietnam 30,246 - - - 30,246
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFA%IKEAE
with customers 10,376,134 4,123,618 1,663,115 338,909 16,601,776
* The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the . REFEHBRRERELHES -
services were provided.
Timing of revenue recognition WEBE
Over time R-BEER 10,376,134 4,123,618 1,622,618 189,253 16,311,623
At a point in time RE-BE - - 40,497 149,656 190,153
Total revenue from contracts ~ BEA%NEAE
with customers 10,376,134 4,123,618 1,663,115 338,909 16,501,776
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

3. REVENUE (continued) 3. Wz (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BoRWEER (&
(continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHEINEF G LW ERE ﬁj\
from contracts with customers with the amounts BRI IR E S % 2 HER
disclosed in the segment information:
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BE_ZT_-_—F-A=+H
LE7R1E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project project  water project

construction construction construction
and operation  and operation  and operation

Segments BRER BEER BRKH Others Total
G ERBEREY HAREREY GERERES Hity #5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI AT BETR AT

Revenue from contracts EFANNE

with customers
External customers IREE 18,613,894 4,318,203 3,112,935 450,202 26,495,324
Inter-segment revenue PEilen - 539 - 1032675  1,033.214

18,613,804 4,318,742 3,112,935 1,482,967 21,528,538

Finance income BIEMA (1,762,915) (181,742) (544,642) - (2,489,299)
Inter-segment adjustments AEEEEREE

and eliminations - (539) - (1,082,675  (1,033,.214)

Total revenue from contracts ~ EFANKNELE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWRBER(E)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2020 BHE-_ZT-_ZTF~A=1+H
LE7{E A
Environmental Greentech Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments RRER SEER BRIk Others Total
bEl BEREREE BEREREE BRREREE Eft 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AR BT BETR BETT

Revenue from contracts EFANNE

with customers
External customers NREP 11,672,778 4,245,687 2,120,086 338,909 18,377,460
Inter-segment revenue Rl e - 188 - 1,153,669 1,153,857

11,672,778 4,245,875 2,120,086 1,492,578 19,631,317

Finance income BBHA (1,296,644) (122,069) (456,971) - (1,875,684)
Inter-segment adjustments BEICERYEE:

and eliminations - (188) - (1,153,669) (1,153,857)

Total revenue from contracts ~ BRFAXINHAE
with customers 10,376,134 4,123,618 1,663,115 338,909 16,601,776
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4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FREERRE (RE)BRDE

4

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

BR A Al &2 7

AEBZHEBAENE

charging/(crediting): e/ (Gt A) -
For the six months ended 30 June
HBZEAA=THILAER
2021 2020
“E--F 5%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEHK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR
Depreciation ik
- property, plant and equipment o ER 249,745 180,120
- right-of-use assets -RAEEE 31,901 26,182
Amortisation - intangible assets BHE-BTEE 494,923 335,024
Dividend income &L ON (155) (2,104)
Interest income FIBHA (65,467) (36,116)
Government grants* HRREE (121,240) (86,104)
Valug-added tax refund™ EEFRRT (88,671) (137,524)
Impairment of debtors, net WS FETE 142,917 44,104
Impairment of other receivables EhfElisERE 5,459 3,435
Impairment of contract assets AHEERR 8,258 -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: DB/ () FE:
Other financial assets - unlisted G BEE-FLTRA
equity investment 7E (475) (429)
Other financial assets - unlisted At EE-FLTRE
investments 17,363 (6,260)
Contingent consideration receivable KARERKFE = 7,692
Employee benefit expense: BERFF -
Wages, salaries, allowances and I8 %% 2HR
benefits in kind EYia 1,249,665 920,009
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGHBIER 234,038 170,373
1,483,703 1,090,382
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4. PROFH’BEFORETAX(cmﬂmwew

ok

Government grants of HK$121,240,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2020: HK$86,104,000)
were granted during the six months ended
30 June 2021 mainly to subsidise certain
environmental energy, greentech and
environmental water projects of the Group in
the PRC and Poland. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of those grants. There is no assurance
that the Group will continue to receive such grants
in the future.

Value-added tax refund of HK$88,671,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2020: HK$137,524,000)
was received/receivable during the six
months ended 30 June 2021 in relation to
certain environmental energy, greentech and
environmental water project operations of the
Group in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached
to the receipts of such tax refund. There is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive
such tax refund in the future.

4. KR

Hok
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

5. FINANCE COSTS 5. BB

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLAMEA

2021 2020
ZBC-F “I-TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Interest on bank and other loans BIREMERZFE 1,246,611 1,067,314
Interest on corporate bond, RAER  EELEES
ABS and MTN RAHREZHE 122,149 62,053
Interest on lease liabilities REREBIHE 1,939 2,231
Asset-backed notes arrangement fee BESHEZRTHER 94,328 -
Others 4 2,812 15,792
Less: Interest expenses capitalised into B RNEBRIREAL
construgtion in progress” ZREX (30,866) (5,848)
1,436,973 1,182,042
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at * BEZZ-—F:-A=1TH
rates ranging from 3.89% to 4.70% (six months WEREAR - BERAREN T
ended 30 June 2020: 4.08% to 4.90%) per annum 3.89%E4.70% (HE-T =
during the six months ended 30 June 2021. TERNA=ZTHILAER :

4.08%%4.90%) 2 FF| & #
TEXRE -
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 (six months
ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
under tax rules and regulations in the PRC.
During the period, certain PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax rate
or fully exempted from income tax under the
relevant tax rules and regulations.
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BERIER  RERNA
%'JDMXEZ‘\)%ZAZZS%%% o Hj
CREBBBBARE KA
B ETHEKEQRZAR
RER X ZSO%%%MNTRIEi
EFREHHRE2BHR -
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a

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRB=THLAEA

2021 2020
—E--& %%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Current - Elsewhere: A - H R -

Charge for the period KERIRR 606,785 429,081

Underprovision/{overprovision) in BASEEETR/
prior periods (BEBR) 5,528 (12,197)
Deferred B 767,464 648,806
Total tax expense for the period TEBRERT S 1,379,777 1,065,690
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7.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

DIVIDENDS 7. B
For the six months ended 30 June
BEXRA=THLAMER
2021 2020
ZBC-F I =S
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT
Dividend attributable to the period: KHERS
Interim - HK19.0 cents RER S - SRR L BR10.0%L
(six months ended 30 June (Bz=%=%F
2020: HK14.0 cents) ANAZTALEAER
per ordinary share 14.071l1) 1,167,165 860,017
Final dividend i respect of BRENE—ERREE 2
the previous financial year paid RERE : -BREER
during the period: - HK16.0 cents 16,0751l
(six months ended 30 June 2020: (B2-Z2-%%
HK13.0 cents) per ordinary share NAZTRIEAER
13.0%1L) 982,876 798,587
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 8. AANrIERIFEARBGER
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 2 A
The calculation of basic earnings per share HE2-_ZTZ_-_—FX~XA=+
amount for the six months ended 30 June BEABEAZERELRA
2021 is based on the profit for the period FleBmhEARaEaF
attributable to equity holders of the Company BABMGEBERAF B
of HK$3,887,378,000 (six months ended 3,887,378,000 it ( B & —
30 June 2020: HK$3,028,747,000) and 2:;¢/—\HE+E¢/—\
6,142,975,292 (six months ended 30 June 2020: @ A : & * 3,028,747,000

6,142,975,292) ordinary shares in issue during
the period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the six months ended 30
June 2021 and 2020.

o) LA&H;WE%*H%@HX
6,142,975 292 % (= =&
—EEXA=THIERNEA :
6,142,975,2920% )5t & o

HEZT-_—FR=_ZT=F
E/\\ﬂ_—'—Eu:/\f.H Z’S
E@IEE‘E{—Jegé'fT/\/EI
BEpe LBk
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—E-—FhHRE 1 O 7
CONTRACT ASSETS 9. BHEE
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-% RZZ_%%F
AA=TE  +ZA=1-AH
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EE%)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
oz BRI BT
Non-current EH
Service concession assets REGETREREE (a) 92,629,996 79,680,846
Less: Impairment W ER (70,169) (61,160)
92,559,827 79,619,686
Current B
Service concession assets BB EEREE (@) 7,957,949 6,969,899
Unbilled renewable energy tariff FEBBLRRER
subsidy gl (b) 4,725,238 4,815,183
Other contract assets HAKHEE () 550,110 691,569
Less: Impairment W ER (10,278) 9,285)
13,223,019 12,467,366
Total ag 105,782,846 92,087,052
Contract assets arising from BORBETLER
performance under construction  ZHIEBREA LM
contracts in connection with service £ i Al B &E
concession arrangements, which 2 A4&E
are included in “intangible assets” 2,791,037 4,906,015
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9.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes:

(@

Included in “Service concession assets” are
amounts of HK$545,894,000 (31 December
2020: HK$549,290,000) and HK$796,359,000
(81 December 2020: HK$789,747,000) which are
related to the construction service under Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT”), Build-Operate-Own
(“BOO”) and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”)
arrangements rendered by the Group to a non-
controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and a related company of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary, respectively.

“Service concession assets” arose from the
Group’s revenue from construction under BOT,
BOO and TOT arrangements and bear interest at
rates ranging from 4.90% to 7.83% (31 December
2020: 4.90% to 7.83%) per annum. Among the
total of HK$100,587,945,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$86,650,745,000), HK$87,214,964,000 (31
December 2020: HK$63,744,486,000) relates to
BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements with operations
commenced.

9.

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

BUVBE
Hiit -
@ BB EEEAE]

o BLES 545,894,000
T(ZZE-TE+_-_A=+
— H: 7 ¥ 549,290,000 7T )
2 8#796,359,0007C ( — &
—EF+-_A=+—RH: %
#789,747,0007T) * 7 Bl RE
FTAEEREBERE—EE —
#H#([BOT)) - 2 — &
% —1%8 ([BOO ) REK —
B "B ([TOT)ZHEA
2 BB R R 2 FEIEA AR
B RIERE N E A R 2 B
RRARHZ EERY -

[ FTREEEE] TR
REBEHBOT » BOOKLTOT
THT 2 EERBE WA
EE HRFEELRLIIONE
783% (ZE-_ZTF+_H
=+—H :4.90%%7.83%)
FREMNE EHAEAE
100,587,945,000 7t ( =& —
TE+-_A=+—H : B
86,650,745,0007C ) F
#87,214,964,0007C (= =
“EE+-_A=+—8:#
#63,744,486,000 7T ) B F
B/ AEE ZBOT » BOOK
TOTZRHE »
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CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

@

(continued)

Pursuant to the BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements,
the Group receives no payment from the grantors
during the construction period and receives
service fees when relevant services are rendered
during the operating periods. The service
concession assets are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by service fees to be received
during the operating periods of the service
concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be
transferred to debtors (note 10).

All of the current portion of service concession
assets are expected to be recovered within one
year.

The balance represented government on-grid
tariff subsidy for certain projects which will be
billed and settled upon the successful completion
of government administrative procedures
pursuant to notices jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration.

The balance as at 30 June 2021 comprised
contract assets of HK$366,172,000 (31
December 2020: HK$312,203,000) arising from
performance under environmental remediation
service contracts, HK$174,584,000 (31 December
2020: HK$237,126,000) arising from performance
under construction management service
contracts, and HK$9,354,000 (31 December
2020: HK$142,240,000) arising from performance
under operation service contracts.

Such contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service periods
once milestones are reached.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

9. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 9.
The increase in contract assets as at 30 June
2021 was the result of the ongoing provision of
construction services under service concession
arrangements during the period. During the six
months ended 30 June 2021, HK$8,258,000
(six months ended 30 June 2020: Nil) was
recognised as an allowance for expected credit
losses on contract assets.

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

BRBEE)

R-_ZE—-—— E/\ﬂf‘fﬁ
ANEEZMTIBARBEARE
BERERBETCEERT
THRERBHE -REZE
—E-—FXA=FTHIN
@A - #%8,258,0007t (&
EE-_FTEXNA=1tHIE

NEA : BICHERRAKNE

ENTAEREEEERE -
The movements in the loss allowance for EREEREBERECZ
impairment of contract assets are as follows: B
HK$’000
BT T
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZEF—HF—H -
Impairment losses %%TEEETE 66,867
Exchange realignment BE 5 S 3,578

As at 31 December 2020 and R-ZE-ZE+_-_A=+—0K

1 January 2021 —E-—4F—H—H
Impairment losses (note 4) FEIEEIE (MT5E4)
Exchange realignment M N A

70,445
8,258
1,744

As at 30 June 2021 (unaudited) RZZEZ—FNA=1+H(XAKLER) 80,447
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

111

10. FEURRRAR - Hfh FEUL IR

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e KRB FHIE
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
R-B--£& W-E-%
~AZtHE  tZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEH) (&%R)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Non-current FFEE
Other receivables, deposits and B eI -
prepayments ReRENFTE 4,500,397 3,587,975
Current B
Debtors FEUMER R 10,139,959 6,466,852
Less: Impairment B REE (429,892) (274,248)
9,710,067 6,192,604
Other receivables, deposits and Hiv B »
prepayments ReRENFTE 6,574,673 7,012,043
Less: Impairment - other receivables o BE-ErERGE (9,128) (3,521)
6,565,545 7,008,522
16,275,612 13,201,126
Total bk 20,776,009 16,789,101
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

10. FEMERR « Eopth & Wk I8
R MBRNTIR (&)

The movements in the loss allowance for FEWREE IR BERE &
impairment of debtors are as follows: BT
HK$°000
BT T
As at 1 January 2020 R_ZE-_TF—H—H 137,443
Impairment losses, net %%TE)E’J'TE FEE 120,876
Exchange realignment PE 5 15,929
As at 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2021 T —F—H—H 274,248
Impairment losses, net (note 4) FEiEEEFE(MES) 142,917
Exchange realignment b 5, K 12,727
As at 30 June 2021 (unaudited) RZE-—FXA=+H
(ﬂi%%%’f?) 429,892
The movements in the loss allowance for Hip e WRIEREB S ERE
impairment of other receivables are as follows: ZEBMT
HK$’000
BT T
As at 1 January 2020 R-TE-ZF—H—H -
Impairment losses FEiEEE 3,342
Exchange realignment P H F5 179
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 A—E-TF+—-F=+—H
January 2021 rZZE-—F—A—H 3,521
Impairment losses (note 4) FEIBE1E (M) 5,459
Exchange realignment P H & 148
As at 30 June 2021 (unaudited) R-ZE-—FA=+H
(RE&EZ) 9,128
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FRURERFX ~ EfbpRURFRIA -

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” are debtors, that were not
individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired, with the following ageing analysis as at

R MBRNTIR (&)

[ R R~ Hftb U RIR
Be RIANFIE P EEL AR
WERERIRARHLEFERE
Z MR - RS HR

the end of the reporting period: ZERER DT

At At

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

R=B=-% e S

~A=tR +ZA=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (B&%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

BRI BETT

Current AN e 5,541,233 4,520,595

Within 1 month past due BRETZR /A 807,826 332,404
More than 1 month but within BHBEA—EARTZR

3 months past due ={&A 386,293 309,733
More than 3 months but within BERAZEARTER

6 months past due ~EA 1,659,443 309,700
More than 6 months but within aHRA~EARTEZR

12 months past due +=f@A 803,591 437,638

More than 12 months past due AHBEET—AA 511,681 282,634

Amounts past due aHeE 4,168,834 1,672,009

9,710,067 6,192,604
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FEUCBRER - A fh FEWRIA -
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e RBNRIEE)
(continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors, based on the EHEAMB (K= ERA
date of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if H UREEEE)FE &
earlier) and net of loss allowance, as at the end of WER R (B MK EEEE) R
the reporting period is as follows: WMEBHRZIRROTAT
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
RZB=-% RZZT-EFF
~A=tR +ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BE%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BB
Within 1 month TER—1EA 3,830,995 3,020,631
More than 1 month but within 2 months ~ #BB—EAEFEH
M1E B 797,643 502,200
More than 2 months but within 4 months 2B (& A EF%H
mfEA 571,735 522,961
More than 4 months but within 7 months #2380 {& A B R %
+fEA 1,854,568 441,831
More than 7 months but within 13 months 2B+ (& AEF%H
+=A 1,070,494 672,977
More than 13 months HBBT=fA 1,584,632 1,032,004
9,710,067 6,192,604
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, [ FEUBRZR - H b fEURIE
deposits and prepayments” are bills receivable e REMREIFBERE
of HK$81,560,000 (31 December 2020: W Z % % # 81,560,000 7T
HK$50,861,000). Debtors are due within 30 to —E-_EF+_-_fF=+—
90 days from the date of billing. A : & #50,861,0007T) °

FE UL BR X A 3 BB B B At
=tEATHAREIH -
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” of the Group are debtors
of HK$9,710,067,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$6,192,604,000), of which HK$36,341,000
(31 December 2020: HK$16,940,000),
HK$16,462,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$33,895,000), HK$13,856,000 (31 December
2020: HK$25,068,000) and HK$10,423,000
(31 December 2020: HK$13,596,000) are due
from the Group’s joint ventures, associates, a
non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary and a related company of
a non wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.
Debtors mainly represent revenue from the
provision of operation services for environmental
energy projects, greentech projects,
environmental water projects and the provision
of environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment and the billed amounts of
the service concession assets.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” at 30 June 2021 are
advances made to local government authorities
in relation to service concession arrangements
amounting to HK$33,622,000 (31 December
2020: HK$46,155,000) which are unsecured,
interest-bearing at rates ranging from the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China to
110% of the rates announced by the People’s
Bank of China, and will be settled by instalments
from 2021 to 2026.
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” under non-current assets at 30
June 2021 is other receivable of HK$26,240,000
(31 December 2020: HK$25,021,000) due from
the Group’s non-controlling shareholder of a
non wholly-owned subsidiary, which is secured,
interest-bearing at 110% of the rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and repayable by
December 2022.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” under current assets at 30
June 2021 are advances of HK$18,403,000
(31 December 2020: HK$17,614,000) to the
Group’s associate for daily operation, which are
unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-
bearing at a rate of 4.75% per annum.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” under current assets at
30 June 2021 are loan to the Group’s joint
venture of HK$6,061,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$17,768,000), which is unsecured, interest-
bearing at 125% of loan prime rate announced
by the People’s Bank of China (“Loan Prime
Rate”) and repayable in 2021, and advance
and other receivables to the Group’s joint
ventures of HK$25,441,000 (31 December
2020: HK$194,995,000), which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B ¥ 3R R Kzt

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10.

11.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Except for the aforementioned impaired other
receivables, the remaining financial assets
included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default and past due
amounts, and the loss allowance was assessed
to be minimal at 30 June 2021 and 31 December
2020.

All of the current portion of the above balances
are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 11.

DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY
PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS
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FEUSBR R ~ ELAd FE UK
2% RIE( A ()
BT LA REAEMmEK

BN BN CE R UK
B BEMNBNFIBZHT
BT B B BT HAN S A R
B SR I R B ) WK IR A
W mEBERER _T_——
FRAA=+RR_T_ZF
g_ﬂ_+ H R E R
i -

SR PR BN EI B4 18
BT R — F AR E RS
FIX °

2 ERRITF R M TR
B=MEA ZRITEK

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020

R-B=-%& WZE-%%
AA=tH  +ZA=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (%)

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

iz BETT AR

Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 8) 554,143 837,770
Deposits with banks with maturity FRERa=EAz

period over three months BAFR (b) 23,037 7,585

577,180 845,355
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

11. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY
PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS
(continued)

Notes:

(@) As at 30 June 2021, bank deposits are pledged
to secure certain bank loans of the Group and are
pledged to banks for the issuance of guarantees
by the banks to the grantors in respect of the
specific performance of the duties by the Group
under certain service concession agreements.

(o) Deposits with banks with maturity period over
three months are not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Included in “Deposits with banks with maturity period
over three months” at 30 June 2021 are deposits of
HK$23,037,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) placed with a
related party bank.

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

. BIRARSRIT R R 7 S
B=18 A8 ZRITERGE)

Hiat

(@ RZZE_—F~A=+H"
RITER Eﬁﬁf'l??é’j$%@
ETHRITERZERR -
RBERE :FfEfT?f¢’§|§E
B T IRTG A AT A8 & R thh o
Z%EEW?EWW?%/\
BHER WEERTEH
RIT ©

(b) HFHREABB=TEAZRTF
R EF AR KBS EE
%o

R-ZE-_—F<A=+H -
[FRBBE=EA ZRTHE
RIBEERABEE HIRITZ
17 3% 78 # 23,037,000 7T ( —

T_Fst-A=t+—A:
m) -

12. ReERIREZEY

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020

m:g:_$ \—7—7¢
AA=tH +ZA=1+—-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (E&%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT

Deposits with banks with maturity FRBIR=@EA2
period less than three months %Efﬂ" m 971,886 1,056,783
Cash at banks and in hand ROEBREES 13,822,291 9,803,910

14,794,177 10,860,693
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(continued)
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at 30
June 2021 are deposits of HK$1,590,652,000
(31 December 2020: HK$1,606,977,000) placed
with a related party bank.

13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

12.

13.

119

RBekReEEYHE)

R—_EBE-_—F<XA=+H"
[BEeRReEBYIRER
MR RS RITZFER
14 590,652,0007T( —E =
ZFE+_A=+—8: ABK
1,606,977,0007T) °

FER RN ~ B A K
et ER

At At

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=-% i S S
~A=1H +_ A _+ H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (E5%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Creditors ERER

Other payables, accrued expenses and ~ HAfENFUE - EsHERR
deferred income - government grants  EIEW A — BRI

17,576,992 13,935,970

5,622,553 5,175,222

Less: Non-current portion B RN
- other payables, accrued - EHENTIER
expenses and deferred income JERHE A BT A
- government grants - B E

23,199,545 19,111,192

(1,129,369) (917,536)

Current portion LR

22,070,176 18,193,656
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 13. BRI ERFN ~ BB A K

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses” are creditors with the
following ageing analysis based on the date of
invoice as at the end of the reporting period:

FEETE R (£&)
[ FEATBRFR ~ Hofth JB T 3R &2
f*fEFFJJ¢@TEFEﬁﬁﬁErA°

REZEHHE CHR S
E;HEZEE‘@%%WZHT
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020

R-B--& RZZZTF
~A=tR +ZA=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (E&%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

Within 6 months TERAER 13,909,381 11,078,444
Over 6 months HBiE~EA 3,667,611 1,957,526

17,576,992 13,935,970

Creditors totalling HK$11,922,513,000 (31
December 2020: HK$9,481,997,000) represent
construction payables for the Group’s BOT,
BOO and TOT arrangements. The construction
payables are not yet due for payment.

& H ;% #11,922,513,000 7T
( —EE+-_f=+—

: ,% ﬁ% 9,481,997,000 7T )
ZFEH%E?XZ%EZK%EBOT .
BOOKRTOTLHE T~ 2 2 T 72
FERTFRIE - BETIRERZIE
BARIEX AT -
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses” are bills payables of
HK$202,888,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$228,028,000). Included in “Creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses” are
creditors of HK$16,102,000 (31 December
2020: HK$6,962,000) and HK$7,769,000
(31 December 2020: HK$1,355,000) due to
the Group’s associate and a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered by the associate or the non-controlling
shareholder to their major customers.

13. |
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“’L #ﬁETf # /H\T,,‘ >§
Eufﬁ?ﬁ_;f‘
[FEATERR - EfbfER KB
MEFERIABEBEEGR
1% 75 ¥ 202,888,000 7t ( —
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Other payables, accrued
expenses and deferred income — government
grants” at 30 June 2021 are other payables
of HK$21,736,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$21,241,000) and other payables and
loans of HK$19,989,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$17,025,000) due to the Group’s associate
and non-controlling shareholders of non
wholly-owned subsidiaries, respectively, which
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Included in “Other payables,
accrued expenses and deferred income —
government grants” at 30 June 2021 is other
payable of HK$1,303,000 (31 December
2020: HK$1,273,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year. Included in “Other payables,
accrued expenses and deferred income —
government grants” at 30 June 2021 is other
payable of HK$222,032,000 (31 December
2020: Nil) due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and
repayable within one year.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B ¥ 3R R Kzt

13.
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14. SHARE CAPITAL 14, fg AR
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
R-B--% RZZT-EF
~A=tHE +ZA=+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (TE7)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Issued and fully paid: BEIREHAR
6,142,975,292 (31 December 2020: 6,142,975,292f%
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares (ZZZZ%+ZR
=+t-8:
6,142,975,292% ) & &A% 17,329,537 17,329,537




1 24 China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FREERRE (RE)BRDE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B ¥ 3R R Kzt

15. BUSINESS COMBINATION 15. X556 0f

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”)

On 21 January 2021, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement (“the Agreement”) and
supplementary agreement with Tianjin Binhai
Environmental Protection Industry Development
Co., Ltd. to acquire 65% equity interest in
Tianjin Huantang. Tianjin Huantang is principally
engaged in municipal waste water treatment
and recycling; pipeline engineering; municipal
engineering; construction, management,
operation, technical consultation and ancillary
services of waste water treatment and reusable
water facilities; research and development
and operation of environmental protection
technology and environmental protection
products; renewable resources utilisation and
operation; sludge dewatering treatment and
its application. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the
water business of the Group. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with consideration for the acquisition
amounting to RMB666,335,724 (equivalent to
approximately HK$800,136,000) and paid in
March 2021. The acquisition was completed on
1 March 2021.

As of 30 June 2021, the provisional purchase
price accounting for the business combination
of Tianjin Huantang was performed. The table
below sets forth the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition
date. The Group may adjust the fair value until
the end of the measurement period if there is
any additional information. The finalisation of the
goodwill amount is dependent on the completion
of the valuation of net assets acquired.

W iE RIFBEFH BEREITK
BEEARAT(RRRE])

R—ZEBE-_—F— A =+—
H  KAEBEBEKXEZGRE
EXEREAR ARG MIME
wiEaE ([ Azl RETE
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RIRRHE - RIFIRETENSE
WHIEKEENMBEFAE
Eﬁlﬁiﬁﬁlﬁ?ﬁ*
BEEPKEEOESR &
e wM\&mm@&mﬁ
R BRREIERRRE R
R mEgE  BEERA
BRELE  SREICERER
HEMR ZbWBIEAEEE
eI
Do mWENEENREINUER
EHRATA - WEREAA
R 666,335,724 7T (1 E R
%77 % 800,136,0007T ) * I
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15. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)

The provisional fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Tianjin Huantang as at
the date of acquisition on 1 March 2021 were as

125

15. RI5A B (&)

WiE RIFBBHERIEISK
BEEARIT ([ RERE])
(&)
RKERBH-_T=-—4=A8
—H - REREZAHHE
ENBBEZEEAAEBENT :

follows:
Provisional
fair value
recognised
on acquisition
L B B
Rz
TERNRE
HK$’000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 898,601
Right-of-use assets FREAE 94,143
Intangible assets EmEEE 27
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 8,122
Inventories F&E 9,218
Debtors, other receivables, FEUSBRIR - HAbEUGRIA
deposits and prepayments Be MIERFRIA 379,585
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEFEY 5,520
Creditors, other payables and FERTERIR - HAb B A K
accrued expenses FEFTE A (465,787)
Tax payables FEFRIA (3,270)
Non-controlling interests FIEVERR A 2 (327,656)
Total identifiable net assets at fair Al PRI E E AR E
value (RARME) 608,503
Goodwill on acquisition WHETEE 22 191,633
800,136
Total consideration BB 800,136
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15. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)

The fair value of the debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments as at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$379,585,000. The
gross contractual amount of debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments was
HK$546,296,000, of which HK$166,711,000 is
expected to be uncollectible.

The non-controlling interests in Tianjin Huantang
recognised at the acquisition date was measured
with reference to the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of net assets
of Tianjin Huantang at that date.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$4,434,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs were expensed and included
in "Administrative expenses" in the consolidated
income statement for the six months ended 30
June 2021.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Tianjin Huantang is as follows:

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

Ny

15. EEE0H(E)

Wis X BB ERE T K
EEARAT(RERE])
(%)

FEURBR IR « H b E UL FRIA
& RIENZTERIE R 5
BN (B 55 8379,585,000
JC o FEUWER R - H b UK
B ReERBENRENEGD
4058 A 546,296,0007T
H B #166,711,000c At
R o

RAEBRFENWEE A B FER N
FERRRER2ERIFER
RS PTERZRERZ B
ﬁﬁé’&ﬁﬁﬁ@thﬂ% CES

REBRZBKEEER S K
B WA 434,000TC © 3ZER
SHKARBE T - —FX
A=Z+BLEANEANLELEAE
\Jf%EPSE% C WEATITERE

A
BRI TR B R
BSIFIT

HK$’'000
BT T
Cash consideration BeRE (800,136)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired iSRS RIS ZBY 5,520
Net outflow of cash and cash FFAREEBFAGREREL
equivalents included in cash flows  HR& MRS ZBE YR L F5E
from investing activities (794,616)
Transaction costs of the acquisition FTAKLEEEFAEIRSTEE
included in cash flows from I HE 32 S PR
operating activities (4,434)

(799,050)
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15. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purpose.

Since the acquisition, Tianjin Huantang
contributed HK$53,640,000 to the Group’s
revenue and a loss of HK$7,966,000 to the
consolidated profit for the six months ended 30
June 2021.

Had the transaction taken place on 1 January
2021, the consolidated revenue and profit of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2021 would have been HK$26,542,681,000 and
HK$4,618,329,000, respectively. In determining
these amounts, management assumed that the
fair value adjustments to the acquired assets and
liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition
would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2021.

Net cash outflow for the acquisition of
subsidiaries included in the cash flows from
investing activities:

127

15. E5E0H(E)
WEE R BB ERE T K
EEARAT(REZRE]
(#&)
MECERAZEER A
VEIVRER B HL ©

BUEBNAR » RERERE
E-_T-_—FXXA=+HIE
NEABAREEERWES
#53,640,0007C © I A4 E
A7 R &5 1878 % 7,966,000
=

WEBXGN B —F—
A—B#T  AEEHZEZ
T —FXA=1+HIENME
AZEGARERAND BB
7 5 26,542,681,000 7T &
#4.,618,329,0007T ° £ E
hELREE > BEERRZM
rERER=_ZE=-_—F—A
—BELE WEMSEER
BERKEBSIEEZR
AEFAERMRER -
AAREEHMERERE
ERWENRBARZESR
A

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAMER

2021 2020

“B--F “ECF%F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEHK) (R@EZ)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETTL

Acquisition of Tianjin Huantang WEXRERE (794,616) -
Others £t (3,081) -

(797,697)
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15.

16.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

On 23 June 2021, the Group entered into an
equity and debt transfer agreement with an
independent third party established in the PRC.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Group agreed
to acquire 80% equity interest of Wuxi Xidong
Environmental Energy Company Ltd. (“Wuxi
Xidong”) and the relevant shareholder loan, for a
total consideration of approximately RMB629.0
million (approximately HK$762.3 million). The
acquisition was completed on 27 July 2021.
Wuxi Xidong is engaged in the operation of
waste-to-energy plant in Wuxi, China. Due to
the timing of the transaction, the Group is still
assessing the financial impact on the Group.
Accordingly, certain disclosures in relation to the
business combination have not been presented.

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

16.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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1&(?’;7%%/\%%6.2901%7%
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HERZ=-_ZE-_—FtA=+
+BTERK > RN E
|IGNEELENIREER -
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EHEFGHEYAEEHE
BHE Al ETHEZE
ﬁ%/\fﬂﬁﬁﬂm?}z BEAZY -

EE
RBEER - AEEBBUT
HHE

i

d

L\) e

(a) Purchase commitments outstanding in (a) EEASKEBERESENZ
connection with the Group’s construction BREEAENT -
contracts were as follows:

At At

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

RZB=-% RZZT-EF

AA=tH +ZA=+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (T&E7)

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Contracted but not provided for B ET4{E R &1 7,273,990 12,035,924
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16. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) At 30 June 2021, the Group had total future

(c)

(d)

lease payments under non-cancellable
lease contracts (including short-term
leases, leases of low-value assets and lease
contracts that have not yet commenced as
at 30 June 2021) as follows:

(b)

A

(Unaudited)
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At At

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
:g: - ¢ \ — 7 —% ¢
~NA=1H +_H,+ A
(Audited)
(E&%)
HK$'000
BETT

(REER)
HK$'000
ABTR

—FR"

Within one year

22,296 12,652

At 30 June 2021, the Group had
outstanding capital commitments relating
to the purchase of limited partnerships in
investment funds not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information of
HK$608,921,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$358,218,000).

At 30 June 2021, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the capital contribution to an unlisted
equity investment not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information
of HK$25,306,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$24,730,000).

(c)

(d)

E-_—FRA=F
AEBESEREE
REASHWBRET

NAZEKEBITER
%%Meo&gm,oooﬁ

—E-EF+ A=+

— B : B ¥358,218,000
IT)  BEAEIL RIEAR
REEEZ P A S E KR
{EH B -

736\— = — E/\
S $%Eﬂﬁ
FEMBAKEETE
ZARBITEREESE
25,306,000 (— - F
F+-A=Z+—H: &
#2024 730,0007T) * B
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16. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(e) At 30 June 2021, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital
contribution to associates not provided for
in this unaudited interim financial information
of HK$9,891,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$45,070,000).

(f) At 30 June 2021, the Group had
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the capital contribution to joint ventures
not provided for in this unaudited interim
financial information of HK$196,009,000
(31 December 2020: HK$72,058,000).

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in this unaudited interim
financial information, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the period:

(a) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related party bank:

16 7?(47%1 : )
(e) R=FE=-—_—F A=+
B AEBEEEHEM
ENFEEZ KRBT
& A YEE 9,891,000
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(a) NEEE KBTI R
TTRISLT T 5 REHE T 2
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEAR=THLEAEA

2021 2020

:g: - ﬁ — ; —= i

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BRI

Interest income FEWA 7,262 6,345
Interest expense S 15,127 14,399
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)

At 30 June 2021, the Group’s bank loans
of HK$1,004,744,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$632,707,000) are due to a related party

bank.

Included in loans from a related party bank

are:

() bank loans in aggregate of
HK$504,744,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$537,947,000), which are secured,
interest-bearing at rates ranging from
Loan Prime Rate minus 0.097% to the
rates announced by the People’s Bank
of China (31 December 2020: rates
ranging from Loan Prime Rate minus
0.097% to the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China), and will
be settled by instalments until 2023 to
2030 (31 December 2020: until 2023 to

2030); and

(i) bank loan of HK$500,000,000 (31
December 2020: HK$94,760,000)
which is unsecured, interest-bearing
at rates ranging from 1.55% to 1.61%
per annum (31 December 2020: a rate
of 105% of the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China) and will be
settled in 2026 (31 December 2020: by

2021).

131

17. BB A R 5 (&)

(a)

i

BB T IRITIRHEZ EX
2R

(i)

m
s
BN

Bk

\
b

R
NN

g 011

B mE

oy

AN

>

o
|11
_‘_N.:

[l
m R’

(o))
W
%
[Ce]
~
N
o |
o
(@]
gl
s 3k 3+ © B

8
A1 S S
Cclt

mmtl g

o
HDOHH

n N D Y

#11] 1 219

:
L
RN |11 3G B O 0D R St I | | Ik

/

S

- o
g~ P

5+

11158 & O
[ - 3

YOS

~ (@)
©
~
o
()

A B> B¢ - Hycm g

“Mﬁﬂwﬁm

A
s
=

R ] R A N B

|| OO SENBEE | | ST B R
| 1 2o

i
Bl 43
S

m <

T
A

,
s
o

(if)

-C)—\\
o
S
Oy
o

S

o)
dl

| 4
Om_FH
+
\“

xto
>
ié\?“ .

- e

=+
Fr| | e B+ G ar 0%

~

BO IS &

2 > mem iy
10 N -
p s+l 2
‘nm:‘\\l w;:o\o S
‘[D]}}>]]]| ‘N
_m‘“ﬁf-“wﬂ?
| OIES A I 2R | | 3F

A

km || %
|1 m
[ 11

~

=



4] 32 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BB R 5 (&)

(continued)

(b) The Group entered into the following related
party transaction with an intermediate
holding company of the Group:

(b) AEEEEBRIERA
AT 7 5B &

5

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

2021 2020

~BC-f& —ZCEE

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEH) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AR

Interest expenses FELTH 44,825 23,114
Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” RZE-_—FXA=+
at 30 June 2021 are other loans of AZItEBEIBRE
HK$2,424,200,000 (31 December 2020: KRB FEERA A
HK$2,369,000,000) from an intermediate Rtz Hth & RAB K
holding company of the Company, which are 2,424,200,0007c(= & =
unsecured, interest-bearing at rates ranging TZE+_-_A=+—8:
from Loan Prime Rate minus 0.45% to 85% 7% #2,369,000,0007T) *
of the rates announced by the People’s EREER ENTE
Bank of China (31 December 2020: rates OE TR EH0.45% &
ranging from Loan Prime Rate minus 0.45% FEARBITIAMZ S
to 85% of the rates announced by the KB (ZE_EF+ =
People’s Bank of China), and repayable in A=+—HB:&NTE
2022 (31 December 2020: 2022). RE R F K F0.45% E
FRARBITAMZE
E85%)FT B WHRZ
T (ZE_FTF
+ZA=+—H8:=Z%

—ZFE)EE-
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Group:

133

7. BT RS (&)

(c) K%@E@E#%EWE

ZiH’*HxﬂxinT_L
TT§IJ BER5

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRB=THLAEA

2021 2020
—E--& “E°%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REE#E%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Revenue from environmental water RRKBERES
project operation services PRges 41,364 35,891
Finance income BrEMA 8,525 8,548
Cost of construction services BERERA 160,182 2,195

(d) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related company of
the Group:

(d) NEEE—KEB AR
RIS T THIREE TR 5 ¢

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRB=THLAEA

2021 2020
—E--& “Z°%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Revenue from environmental water RIRKEEEESR
project operation services PRges 42,994 27,337
Finance income BrEMA 27,317 25,017
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BB 525 ()
(continued)
(e) The Group entered into the following related (e) AEBEEHAEEDERT
party transactions with joint ventures of the ST TR
Group:

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=THLAHER

2021 2020
~BC-f& —ZCEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR
Revenue from environmental energy ~ BR{R4¢RTE B 235
project construction services FRslas 238,896 -
Sales of machinery HEMS 16,027 68,473
(f) The Group entered into the following related (f) AEBHEEBKERAFG
party transactions with associates of the AN o) 7?5&%
Group:
For the six months ended 30 June
BEABZTHLAEA
2021 2020
ZF--F it S 323
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Service expenses for operation of AKREREE
waste water treatment plants RS 29,695 19,262

Sales of machinery HERS - 32
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BB X5 (4,

(continued)

(9) The Group entered into the following related (9) AEBEHERRKER
party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of BIETSL T T 5 BB 5 2
the Group: 2

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THILAEA
2021 2020
~BC-F —ZCEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BETT AR
Underwriting service fees AEREER 0] 4,312 1,453

Note: KiaF -

(i)  The underwriting service fees of the issues iy BE—ZT-——%xA=
of the RMB-denominated MTN by the +HIENEAR - ARAA
Company and China Everbright Greentech EHRENAgEERES
Limited (“CEGL”) for the six months ended RAR([ K& EIER
30 June 2021 were calculated pursuant to R1)BEIT2Z ANRES
the relevant underwriting agreements. Further HZ g 2 A RIS B R
details of the underwriting agreements TIiRBEAR B A s
are disclosed in the announcement of the 8o FKiEtm e E—
Company dated 16 March 2021 and CEGL HERARARBBHAR =
dated 1 April 2020. T-—F=RA+~AK

HARFERRBBAAZ

T_TFWA—HZA

HREE -
The underwriting service fees of the issue BEZT-_TFA~A=
of the RMB-denominated MTN by CEGL THIEA@EA - KA
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 BRRBITZ AREH
were calculated pursuant to the relevant HZE 7 ARG E B
underwriting agreement. Further details of the TR R AR A S AT
underwriting agreement are disclosed in the o AilpEsE— S
announcement of CEGL dated 1 April 2020. HIER N AZEIRER

AT _FFMA—
AZREREE -
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BAE 7 325 (4

(continued)
(g) (continued)

During the six months ended 30 June 2021,
the Group’s office was leased from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group. As at 30 June
2021, the right-of-use assets related to the
office leased from the fellow subsidiary of
the Group amounted to HK$11,453,000 (31
December 2020: HK$4,685,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$11,472,000 (31 December
2020: HK$4,869,000) are due to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group. Depreciation on
right-of-use assets related to this office
amounted to HK$6,565,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2020: HK$7,198,000) and
interest on lease liabilities to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group amounted to
HK$267,000 (six months ended 30 June
2020: HK$196,000) during the six months
ended 30 June 2021.
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(h) Transactions with other state-owned entities

in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic
environment predominated by enterprises
directly or indirectly owned and/or controlled
by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “Other SOEs”).
During the six months ended 30 June
2021, the Group had transactions with
Other SOEs including, but not limited to the
revenue, bank deposits and borrowings,
and utilities consumptions. The directors of
the Company consider that the transactions
with Other SOEs are activities in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business,
and that the dealings of the Group have
not been significantly or unduly affected by
the fact that the Group and Other SOEs
are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also
established pricing policies for products and
services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not
depend on whether or not the customers
are Other SOEs. Having due regard to
the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that none of these transactions is material
related party transaction that would require
separate disclosure.
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BB 525 ()
(continued)
(i) The Group paid key management personnel () XEBEEXNFEEE
compensation as follows: BABZHMMAT

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLAMEA

2021 2020
ZBC-F —5-%%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Salaries and other short-term FeRENEDES
employee benefits BF 7,381 6,741
Retirement scheme contributions BIRGTEIER 3 1,123
7,758 7,864
18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 18. @M ITAZ ARBERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL RiERR
INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values ERETCHReRReEE
of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank ¥ - BEEEIRITER - TR
deposits, deposits with banks with maturity A =EA ZRITHENR
period over three months, creditors, debtors, FERTERFR - FEUBR R - AR
current portion of other receivables, deposits HEmpElsE - me hEN
and prepayments, finance lease receivables, FIE - BMEHEEEWKKIE -
other payables and accrued expenses, and Hi B RIEREGTER &
interest-bearing borrowings approximate to their FTEBECAHBH AR
carrying amounts largely due to the short term EREFEEBERS  £ZH

maturities of these instruments. NezE T ARG BHREE -
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance management department
is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance management department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The
valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, finance
lease receivables, other payables and accrued
expenses, and interest-bearing borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing borrowings
as at 30 June 2021 was assessed to be
insignificant.
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18. @ERMTAZAREBERARE
ZRRERR (&)

AEEHBERYMYE
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VEEERBEZARLBEMN
ZTERBRR S (imIER
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income in Level
2 represents an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset
value of the investee which approximates to the
fair value.

The fair value of the equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income in Level 3 is estimated
with reference to the expected future cash flows
of the investment.

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 2 are based on net
asset value of the investees which approximate
to the fair value.

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 3 is based on the
expected future cash flows of the investment.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the interim financial
information are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the interim financial information on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2021

18. iv‘ﬁl/ﬂ\ DABERAARE
RimiR A (4)

DARERBRB(E)
TRIGEASESHMTAY
DAETER

AR EIGEZEE
R-E-_—FA=+H

Fair value measurement using

ERNTRBEAAAETE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EBTS  EAUER EXTUER
ZHE BAgE BARE Total
(E-%) (B=§) (=4) 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT BT E8T

Equity investments designated TR AL Ef AR EE

atfar value through other A 2 R :

comprehensive income:

- Listed il 62 - - 62

- Unlisted o il - 3,899 28,067 31,966

62 3,899 28,067 32,028

Financiel assets at fairvalue AL B AZBZERALZ

through other comprehensive AR (5t ATEMES)

income, which are included

in debtors - 23,664 - 23,664
Financial assets at fair value /A% BEf A B3 2 B AR

through profit or loss - 401,111 35,325 436,436

62 428,674 63,392 492,128
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 18. @M TECZARERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ZRiER R (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARERBEE(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BANBEFAEZEE & (&)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FRNTSEETAA B E
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERME  EXUBE  EATUEER
LHE GATE GAHE Total
(E-R) (£-4) (=) &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI i A BB BB
Equity investments designated £ RA A BEFALMZE
atfairvalue through other A 2 R4 -
comprehensive income:
- Listed —t 4743 - - 4743
- Unlisted = Al - 3,899 28,067 31,966
4743 3,899 28,067 36,709
Financial assets at fairvalue KRG EF AR ZBBER
through profit or loss - 646,047 34,051 680,098
4743 649,946 62,118 716,807
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

18. EMIAZ AAREBRAAE
RBARA (&)

DNAERBRB(E)
RS BB BE - (&)

N,

Assets measured at fair value: (continued) p;
The movements in fair value measurements BMAREFENEF
within Level 3 during the period/year are as N2 EBHINT :
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-% e S
~AA=tHE +ZA=1-AH
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BER)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Equity investments designated BERAAEA
at fair value through other Htt2EBAZ
comprehensive income: BRARE -
At beginning of the period/year RE,/E4) 28,067 35,998
Fair value loss AREFE = (7,981)
At end of the period/year RER/EX 28,067 28,067
Financial asset at fair value through BAnBEHABREZ
profit or loss: HBARE:
At beginning of the period/year RE/ &) 34,051 31,010
Fair value gain YLV e 475 883
Exchange realignment i 5 % 799 2,158
At end of the period/year R/ FXR 35,325 34,051
Contingent consideration receivable: ~ SiSAMBREIEE :
At beginning of the period/year WEH,/E4) = 7,708
Fair value adjustment AREFHE - (7,814)
Exchange realignment [ 5 = 106

At end of the period/year REER/ER
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18.

19.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2021 and
31 December 2020.

During the six months ended 30 June
2021, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (six
months ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

() On 27 July 2021, CEGL completed the
issuance of the second tranche of medium-
term notes in the national inter-bank bond
market in the Mainland with a principal
amount of RMB1 billion and a maturity
period of 3+2 years at a coupon rate of
3.50% per annum for the first 3 years.
Further details are disclosed in CEGL’s
announcement dated 29 July 2021.

18.

19.
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19. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD (continued)

(i) On 9 August 2021 (the “Super & Short-
term Commercial Papers Issue Date”),
China Everbright Water Limited (“CEWL”), a
72.87% owned subsidiary of the Company,
completed the issuance of the first tranche
of RMB-denominated Super & Short-term
Commercial Papers in the national inter-
bank bond market in the Mainland with
a principal amount of RMB800 million,
an interest rate of 2.40% per annum and
a maturity period of 120 days from the
Super & Short-term Commercial Papers
Issue Date. Further details are disclosed in
CEWL’s announcement dated 10 August
2021.

20. APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED INTERIM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
This unaudited interim financial information was
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 12 August 2021.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

R B E R FRARE

To the board of directors of China Everbright
Environment Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Introduction

We have reviewed the interim financial information
set out on pages 69 to 146, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2021 of China Everbright Environment Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, and the
related consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the six-month period then
ended, and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of
a report on interim financial information to be in
compliance with the relevant provisions thereof
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” (“HKAS 34”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information # Hi 81 # & ¥ FE R &

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
the HKICPA. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the interim
financial information is not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

12 August 2021
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